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Chairman’s Statement

FERE
To Our Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present to you our 2010
annual report.

Results and Dividends

For the year ended 31 December 2010, New Heritage's revenue rose 45% from
the previous year to HK$375.5 million (HK$258.9 million in 2009). Its profit
attributable to the owners of the Company rose 14% from the previous year to
HK$18.1 million (HK$15.9 million in 2009).

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.5 HK cents
per ordinary share (0.4 HK cents in 2009) in cash for the year ended
31 December 2010 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 14 April 2011, and will seek the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting on
14 April 2011 for the payment of this final dividend. The dividend warrants are
expected to be dispatched to registered shareholders on or around
28 April 2011.

Business Review and Outlook

The Company has achieved its highest annual revenue since listing despite the
various unfavourable measures introduced during the course of 2010 to
dampen property market speculation in the major cities and municipalities of
the PRC. This milestone was due to the successful concurrent sales of its
Wuzhong Garden Court, Taihu Garden Court and Lakeside Garden Court
projects in 3 distinct markets and market segments within greater Suzhou City.
Additionally, its associated company Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Landmark”) recorded profitable recovery and posted strong
contribution.

Looking forward, we believe that the coming few years will present challenges
as well as opportunities in the PRC property market. With inflation being a major
concern of the government, it is inevitable, we believe, that interest rates will
continue to rise more substantially than has been the case in 2010 and there
will be continued pressure on the Renminbi to appreciate against the US dollar.
However, demand for properties from consumers will continue to be strong as a
hedge against inflation and preserver of personal asset values. There are few
proven and less riskier alternative channels for investment of substantial
personal wealth in the PRC. Also, the continued urbanisation trend and the
rejuvenation of old dilapidated city areas encourage growth and capital flow into
the property sector. Secondary and tertiary cities and primary and secondary
districts within these cities are all areas that supply land and good development
potential.

New Heritage will position itself to take advantage of the increase of rising
property prices by creating and bringing to the market more appealing
properties, whilst maintaining a reasonable gearing ratio and satisfactory
turnover. We have traditionally focussed our development in secondary cities
with great growth potential such as Suzhou and within its primary and
secondary districts such as Wuzhong and Wujiang which offer sound
fundamentals to attract and establish business operations and social
communities. We shall continue to source deals in these and other cities and
districts both coastal and inland, where we believe the combination of relatively
cheaper land in these areas (compared to primary cities) and rising incomes of
residents will be positive for our business.
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As our Group continuously aims to improve and refine our products, we will also
diversify our market deliverables by adding more commercial products to our
predominantly residential portfolio. We shall pay even more attention to
environmentally friendly building methods and materials as this will be an
important factor for buyers and the government as the PRC continues its
economic development with an emphasis on sustainability and eco-friendly
characteristics.

We have accumulated a good land reserve combination of residential land, both
low and higher density, and land for commercial development including office,
retail as well as Small Office/Home Office (“SOHQO”) units which will all be
available for the Group’s development in the coming few years. Added to this,
Beijing Landmark has given our senior management a few decades’ presence
in the hotel, office and serviced apartment sectors in Beijing and the expected
upswings in those sectors in the coming year will contribute positively.

Our development and expansion would not have been possible without the
continued support from our strategic partners and our bankers and their
ongoing participation for which we are most grateful. May | take this opportunity
to thank each of our Board members, staff and colleagues for their ongoing
dedicated work and commitment throughout the year and beyond to bring
about better returns to our investors and shareholders.

TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. Tao)
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2011

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED M

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

In 2010, the Group continued its focus on property development and
investment in Suzhou and Beijing. Cities within and outside Jiangsu Province
with high growth potential were actively explored and analysed, with some
potential prospects undergoing negotiations.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

During the year under review, the buoyant property market in the first quarter
was followed by Central Government measures to dampen excessive price
increases in the overheated markets which inevitably also affected buyers’
general sentiment. Nevertheless, a significant portion of the Group’s sales
occurred before such measures came into effect. Furthermore, the government
measures were relatively slower in taking effect in the markets and districts
where we are focused as homes were generally considered to be affordable for
residents.

The Group’s development projects in Suzhou were processed on schedule for
the year and sales generally exceeded our targets.

1. Wuzhong Garden Court, Wuzhong, Suzhou

Wuzhong Garden Court Phase 3's impressive skyline
2815 50 55 = BB B 695187

Phase 3 of Wuzhong Garden Court, in the form of two 11-storey blocks,
comprises 206 SOHO units and 12 retail units with a gross floor area of
approximately 10,429 sq.m. and 5,538 sq.m., respectively. All SOHO
units were completely sold and approximately 9,962 sq.m. was delivered
in 2010, generating revenue of approximately HK$67.3 million in 2010
with the remaining 467 sg.m. to be delivered in 2011. The retail portion
secured contracted sales of approximately 3,785 sq.m. which
contributed a turnover of approximately HK$36.7 million and will be
delivered in the first half of 2011. The remaining retail area of
approximately 1,753 sq.m. is also expected to be sold in 2011.
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Today’s PRC customers envisage a high level of sophistication
in their homes
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2.

Management Discussion and Analysis

Taihu Garden Court, Guangfu Town, Wuzhong, Suzhou

P/easanfgreenscapmg is an essem/a/ part of com‘emporary living in our projects
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In Phase 1, 55 townhouse units of gross floor area of approximately
13,475 sqg.m. were sold and delivered in 2010, contributing sales of
about HK$124.7 million. The remaining unsold 16 units of this phase are
expected to be sold in 2011.

Phase 2 construction began in August 2010. The gross floor area of this
phase is about 24,000 sq.m. with 110 low-density townhouses. It is
expected to be completed and delivered at the end of 2011. Pre-sales is
scheduled to be launched in the middle of 2011.

The construction of Phase 3 will start in early 2011. This final phase of
the project will consist of approximately 84 low-density townhouse units
with a total gross floor area of around 20,000 sg.m..

Lakeside Garden Court, Shengze Town, Wujiang, Suzhou
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Lakeside Garden Court’s attractive high-rise apartments in Phase 1 have been well
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The total site area of this project is about 86,200 sq.m. with a gross floor
area of approximately 154,480 sqg.m. and is being developed in four
phases.

Construction of Phase 1, with a gross floor area of around 40,980 sg.m.,
was completed at the end of 2010. During the year under review, about
28,800 sq.m. of 4 blocks of high-rise residential buildings was sold and
delivered, generating a revenue of approximately HK$172.0 million. A
clubhouse together with stipulated community and property
management areas was also completed.

Phase 2, comprising another 4 blocks of high-rise apartment towers,
commenced construction in mid-2010 and is scheduled for delivery
before the end of 2011. The gross floor area in this phase is about 35,900
sg.m.. Pre-selling began at the end of 2010 and was mel-with a strong
market response.

The gross floor areas of Phases 3 and 4 will be about 19,400 sq.m. and
58,200 sqg.m. respectively. Phase 3 will consist of 86 low-density
townhouses while Phase 4 will comprise a further 6 blocks of high-rise
residential buildings. Construction on both phases are expected to begin
in 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEENWE D

4. Wuzhong Office Building, Wuzhong, Suzhou

The design configuration of this property will consist of offices, SOHO
units and retail space. Permitted gross floor area of the property is around
58,400 sg.m. on a site with an area of approximately 14,600 sq.m.. The
local Wuzhong government has confirmed the construction of a subway
line into the district to be completed in the next 2 to 3 years, and an
entrance/exit will be located in close proximity to this project.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Suzhou subway line to Suzhou New District is expected to be open for use
in 2012. This should increase both the value of the Group’s retail and residential
investment property in Suzhou New District, which is near one of the subway’s
entrance/exits on Bin He Road.

1. SGV Plaza, Suzhou New District

During the year under review, this 11,023 sq.m. plaza generated
approximately HK$5.0 million rental income with an occupancy rate of
94% as of 31 December 2010. The tenants include chain retailers with a
recognised brand name in Suzhou, gradually establishing SGV Plaza as a
fashion and food icon on Shi Shan Road, the main thoroughfare of
Suzhou New District CBD.

2. Garden Court Plaza, Suzhou New District

Garden Court Plaza is a 3-storey retail centre with a gross floor area of
around 4,481 sqg.m.. During the year under review, occupancy rate was
100%, with an annual rental of about HK$2.4 million. Tenants showed
confidence in the retail market by upgrading their shop decoration and
product mix. The Group anticipates promising prospects for a rise in
rental rates upon lease renewal during 2012-2013 due to the property’s
close proximity to a subway entrance/exit.

3. SGV Apartments

In 2010, the Group booked disposals of approximately 4,500 sq.m. of
investment apartments with notable proceeds of about HK$48.2 million,
taking advantage of the buoyant secondary residential market at the
beginning of the year. As at the end of 2010, the Group still held
approximately 8,580 sq.m. of apartments. Rental revenue for the year
under review was approximately HK$3.4 million.

4, Investment in Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Landmark”)

Beijing Landmark contributed HK$13.4 million to the Group in 2010
compared to HK$6.1 million in 2009. Occupancy rates in the office
towers increased to almost 100% by the end of the year. Revenue from
its hotel rooms, serviced apartments and conference centre also steadily
increased throughout the year. With the tourism market in Beijing
enjoying a revival, the Nation’s Capital will naturally be one of the top
travel destinations for business conventions and meetings, and Beijing
Landmark is ideally positioned, both in terms of location and facilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

The Group continues to outsource estate management operations to fully
licensed and qualified local property management companies in Suzhou.
Owners’ associations are established at the appropriate time for each of the
Group’s projects in accordance with local rules and regulations. This enables us
to focus on the development, marketing and sales side of the business and
minimises exposure to the labour intensive nature of property management
operations and related troubleshooting.

STRATEGIC PARTNERS

Spinnaker Capital Group

Spinnaker Capital Group, a strategic partner of the Group since 2006, remains
one of the substantial shareholders of the Company as well as a strategic non-
controlling shareholder in two of the Group’s projects — Wuzhong Garden Court
and Taihu Garden Court.

Asia Financial Group

Since 2007, Asia Financial Group (“AFG”) has been a 9.615% shareholder of
New Heritage Development Limited (“NH Development”), a subsidiary of the
Company. NH Development is the holding company of most of the Group’s
property project companies in Suzhou. AFG is also the holder of the Company’s
5% Convertible Notes.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue mainly comprised of recognised property development
sales and leasing revenue from investment properties. The Group’s revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2010 was approximately HK$375.5 million (2009:
HK$258.9 million), representing an increase of 45% as compared with last
year. The increase in the Group’s revenue was mainly due to the increase in
revenue from recognised property development sales.

The revenue from recognised property development sales included the disposal
of 55 low-density townhouse units in Taihu Garden Court Phase 1, 197 SOHO
units in Wuzhong Garden Court Phase 3 and 365 residential apartment units in
Lakeside Garden Court Phase 1 of approximately HK$124.7 million,
approximately HK$67.3 million and approximately HK$172.0 million
respectively. The Group’s total gross floor area of development properties sold
for the year ended 31 December 2010 was approximately 52,300 sg.m. (2009:
33,400 sg.m.).

Leasing revenue from investment properties for the year ended 31 December 2010
was approximately HK$10.8 million (2009: HK$13.7 million). The leasing
revenue generated from the investment properties in Suzhou Garden Villa and
two commercial plazas were approximately HK$3.4 million (2009: HK$6.7
million) and approximately HK$7.4 million (2009: HK$7.0 million) respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEENWE D

Operating Results

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s gross profit amounted to
approximately HK$77.6 million (2009: HK$42.9 million). The increase in gross
profit was primarily due to the increase in revenue from property development
sales. The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2010 was
approximately 21% as compared to approximately 17% last year.

The finance costs for the year amounted to approximately HK$18.6 million as
compared to HK$26.3 million last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the finance costs capitalised to properties held under development for the year
of HK$6.4 million (2009: HK$0.7 million), the decrease in interest expense on
project financing loans due to the decrease of interest rate in 2010 and also the
decrease in imputed interest expense on loans from non-controlling
shareholders as a result of reduction of imputed interest rate in 2010. There
was a non-cash outflow item of approximately HK$4.5 million (2009: HK$7.2
million) included in the finance costs being the imputed interest expense on
loans from non-controlling shareholders.

The valuation on the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2010
was conducted by an independent property valuer which resulted in a positive
fair value adjustment of approximately HK$18.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2010 (2009: HK$7.4 million).

During the year, certain investment properties were sold for a total consideration
of approximately HK$48.2 million (2009: HK$20.4 million).

Share of results of associates mainly represented the profit contributed by
Beijing Landmark to the Group for the year of approximately HK$13.4 million
(2009: HK$6.1 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the profit attributable to the owners of
the Company was approximately HK$18.1 million (2009: HK$15.9 million)
which represented a basic earnings per share of 1.5 HK cents (2009: 1.4 HK
cents).

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2010 amounted to
approximately HK$422.1 million (2009: HK$348.3 million).

The Group had total bank borrowings of approximately HK$319.9 million as at
31 December 2010 (2009: HK$290.4 million). Borrowings classified as current
liabilities were approximately HK$286.0 million (2009: HK$187.3 million) and
the Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2010 was approximately 34%
(2009: 33%), which was based on total bank borrowings to total equity.

Current, Total and Net Assets

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$1,144.1 million (2009: HK$1,069.1 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$451.5 million (2009: HK$317.4 million) which represented a
decrease in net current assets from approximately HK$751.7 million as at
31 December 2009 to approximately HK$692.6 million as at 31 December 2010.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group recorded total assets of approximately
HK$1,659.1 million (2009: HK$1,542.8 million) and total liabilities of
approximately HK$709.8 million (2009: HK$671.2 million), representing a debt
ratio (total liabilities over total assets) of approximately 43% (2009: 44%).
Net assets of the Group was approximately HK$949.3 million as at
31 December 2010 (2009: HK$871.6 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

All land fees for all the land acquired for development by the Group have been
fully paid.

The Group is able to utilise its internal reserves and debt financing to meet the
funding requirements when opportunities for land acquisition arise.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2010, bank loans of approximately HK$308.5 million (2009:
HK$246.1 million) were secured by certain of the Group’s properties, plant and
equipment, investment properties and properties held under development of
approximately HK$40.0 million (2009: Nil), approximately HK$146.3 million
(2009: HK$141.5 million) and approximately HK$315.7 million (2009:
HK$349.2 million) respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

The directors of the Company considered that there were no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2010.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and US dollars. During the year
under review, there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rates of these
three currencies apart from the appreciation of currency of Renminbi against
US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group did not engage in any derivative
activities and did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its statement
of financial position exposure for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.
Nevertheless, any appreciation in the currency value of the Renminbi against
the Hong Kong dollar will contribute positively to the Group’s result.

Treasury Policies and Capital Structure

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and funding
policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that are directly
related to the underlying business of the Group.

Employees

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had a staff roster of 109 (2009: 118), of
which 81 (2009: 89) employees were based in the Mainland China and 28
(2009: 29) employees in Hong Kong SAR. The remuneration of employees was
in line with the market trends and commensurate to the levels of pay in the
industry. Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries,
bonuses and long-term incentives.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
TtEMISEME

Over the years, the founder and members of senior management of New
Heritage have been practicing CSR in one form or another of its many guises.
Charitable donations, staff functions and benefits, internships, as well as
intangible contributions to the evolution of the community around our site of
operations in the PRC have been but some of the activities partaken.

The Board is mindful of the balancing act between how much resources the
corporation can afford to allocate to CSR activities and still be able to satisfy its
shareholders’ and investors’ expectations on returns. Our core competencies
as a real estate developer being applied to advance social change for the better
is manifested in our eco-friendly building designs, materials and construction
methods. This would naturally result in relatively lower costs in certain areas
and meet corresponding local material regulations.

Community Responsibility

New Heritage has had an extensive but low-key approach to exercising its role
of being responsible to the community. Starting with our Chairman'’s initiatives
in 1995 of introducing Suzhou to both distinguished academic and professional
parties, resulting in two valuable and timeless publications on EDAW/Pei
workshop in 1996 entitled, “Suzhou: Shaping an Ancient City for the New
China”, and in 1997, a Harvard GSD design studio on “One Body, Two Wings’
Redevelopment in China”, we are today still engaging professionals and working
closely with local district governments in the analysis and development
feasibility of eco-friendly and sustainable development in sites close to and
further afield to our original base of operations.

Our Group has been a past recipient of the Platinum Award/President’s Award
(2005/06), Gold Award/Award of Merit (2006/07) from the Community Chest of
Hong Kong. Our staff members have also done their part in supporting annual
charity drives in the form of Dress Special Day, Skip Lunch Day, Love Teeth Day
and annual raffle tickets from two church institutions.

Student internships have been welcome in both Hong Kong's head office as
well as Suzhou'’s project sites.

Environmental Responsibility

With the lifting of prohibition on foreign developers’ residential sales to the local
population in the PRC in the early 2000's, all our residential projects have been
delivered with unfinished interiors allowing for individual buyers’ own
preferences in fitting out their units. The environmentally unfriendly practice of
ripping out all original fittings and fixtures generating demolition waste is thus
avoided.

Eco-material or energy-saving material has been used in our recent Suzhou
projects, and include:

o External wall insulation material

o Aluminium windows with thermo-break and double glazing
o Permeable road tiles

o Different lightweight concrete partition blocks

. Solar Heating

o External Sunshade curtains for windows in common areas
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Employer’s Responsibility

The Group has adopted a five-day work week for all HK based employees of the
Group, thereby not only saving on commuting costs but also promoting the
balance between work, health and social activity among other things.

The Group continues to provide a comprehensive medical insurance plan for all
its staff members in HK. When available, all levels of staff in Hong Kong are
offered share options, which is sometimes restricted to directors and senior
management in other public listed companies.

The Group voluntarily contributes extra funding exceeding minimum statutory
requirements to the staff’s provident fund scheme in Hong Kong in addition to
the MPF Scheme.

The executives and staff also organised a Christmas lunch, and lucky draws
were sponsored by both management shareholders as well as outside suppliers
and professional parties.

Corporate Governance

A code of conduct is outlined in the Company’s staff handbook under the
section entitled “Rules, Ethics & Discipline”. The Company has established and
continues to refine its internal control systems by engaging qualified
professional third parties periodically to review and compile their findings to the
relevant committee.

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 27 to 32 of this report.

Corporate Social Responsibility
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEZERE

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (also known as C.F. TAO), 88, is an Executive
Director, Chairman of the Company and a founder of the Group. He is
responsible for determining the overall business strategies of the Group. He
graduated from Nanjing University B8 72 K 2 with a Bachelor of Science degree
in mechanical engineering. Mr. TAOCHAIFU had played a significant role in
property investment and property development activities in the PRC since 1978.
One of the most important PRC projects that Mr. TAOCHAIFU participated in
was the development of Nanjing Jinling Hotel ( B 5 & £ R /& ) in Nanjing, one
of the earliest 5-star hotels built in the PRC following the “opening up” of the
PRC to the outside world in 1978. He was appointed as a director of New
Heritage Investments Limited (“NH Investments”) in 1984. He was involved in
establishing and supervising it = 5T KE AR A A (Beijing Landmark
Towers Co., Ltd.) (“BLTCL"), the joint venture with Beijing Tourism
Administration to develop the Beijing Landmark Towers complex.
Mr. TAOCHAIFU is the deputy chairman and an executive director of BLTCL. He
was appointed as a director of New Heritage Development Limited (“NH
Development”) in 1991. From 1991 onwards, he was responsible for forming
BRONIREE I R B R E I AR A A (Suzhou Garden Villa Development and
Management Co., Ltd.) (“SGVDM") and supervising the overall development of
Suzhou Garden Villa and Suzhou Garden Court. He is also the chairman of
SGVDM. Mr. TAOCHAIFU was accredited as an Honorary Citizen by the
municipal government of Suzhou in 1995. He was also a former independent
non-executive director of Jiangsu Expressway Company Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board. Mr. TAOCHAIFU is the Honorary President of Hong
Kong Federation of Overseas Chinese Associations Limited. He was granted the
“World Outstanding Chinese” award in 2008. He was also awarded an Honorary
Doctor Degree from The University of West Alabama in 2008. Mr. TAOCHAIFU
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 23 December 2004
and is the father of Mr. TAO Richard and Mr. TAO Paul.

Mr. TAO Richard, 49, is an Executive Director and Vice Chairman of the
Company. He is responsible for the strategic planning and corporate
development of the Group. Mr. TAO has a Bachelor of Science (First Class
Honours) from the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne, and two Masters
Degrees from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He was appointed as a
director of NH Development, NH Investments and SGVDM in 2000, 2001 and
2004 respectively. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company
on 23 December 2004. He is a son of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang and the
brother of Mr. TAO Paul.

Mr. TAO Paul (also known as TAOCHAIFU Porn), 43, is the Managing Director of
the Company. He graduated from the University of Cambridge, England with a
Master of Arts degree. He also holds a Master of Science degree in Real Estate
from the University of Greenwich, England and participated in the Program for
Management Development at the Graduate School of Business Administration,
Harvard University, USA. Mr. TAO has been actively involved in property
development and investment in the PRC for over 15 years since joining the
Group. Mr. TAO was initially responsible for the sales and marketing activities
for the projects in Suzhou, and latterly in general management. He is a member
of The 12th Committee of Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference # Bl A RBUA B & i T #k & &x N T & +
—JBEZEB2ZE . Mr. TAO is also a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong. He was
appointed as a director of NH Development, SGVDM and NH Investments in
1997, 1999 and 2001 respectively. Mr. TAO was also appointed as a director of
BLTCL in 2006. He was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
23 December 2004. He is a son of Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang and the brother
of Mr. TAO Richard.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence, 62, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated in 1970 from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Social
Sciences degree with honours majoring in Economics and Accounting. He is a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers, being qualified in 1977. He
joined Ocean Shipping & Enterprises Limited in 1970 and has over 20 years of
senior management experience. He joined the Group’s associated companies
in November 1999 and has been actively involved in the business planning and
development of the Group’s business in PRC, including but not limited to
contract negotiations with third party professionals and contractors as well as
project management. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 23 December 2004.

Mr. YIM Chun Leung, 49, is an Executive Director of the Company. Mr. YIM is a
fellow member of The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Mr. YIM also holds a Master of Business Administration degree. Mr. YIM has
more than 26 years’ experience in auditing, accounting and finance fields.
Mr. YIM had worked for several listed companies as director or engaged in
senior management position. Mr. YIM was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 23 December 2004 and is responsible for corporate finance
matters of the Group.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, GBS, JP, 46, is a Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. CHAN is a graduate and is currently a Trustee of Pomona College
in California, U.S.A.. He is a Hong Kong Deputy to the National People’s
Congress of the People’s Republic of China. He serves as the Chairman of
Lingnan University, the Antiquities Advisory Board, the Advisory Committee on
Revitalisation of Historic Buildings, the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council,
the Council for Sustainable Development and the Vice Chairman of the Council
of Oxfam Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. CHAN serves as an advisor of Bangkok
Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch and the Vice Chairperson of
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service. Mr. CHAN is currently an executive
director and the President of both Asia Financial Holdings Ltd. and Asia
Insurance Company, Limited. He is a director of City e-Solutions Limited, an
independent non-executive director of each of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited,
Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited, China Resources Enterprise, Limited
and Yau Lee Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. CHAN is also a director of Wing
Lung Bank Limited (which was delisted from the Stock Exchange in 2009). He
was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 14 November
2005.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, 49, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. WONG graduated from The University of British Columbia with a
Master Degree of Business Administration in Finance and Management
Information Systems, and a Degree of Bachelor of Applied Science in Electrical
Engineering. He is a member of the Association of Certified General
Accountants’ Association of Canada. Mr. WONG has been working for a number
of international financial institutions and has numerous experiences in the
banking industry. Currently, he is a manager in Standard Chartered Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited in Hong Kong. He has internal controls and financial reporting
experience. Mr. WONG was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 14 November 2005.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEZERE

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun, 49, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. SUN graduated from the University of California, Los Angeles
with a Master Degree of Business Administration in 1986. Mr. SUN is the Chief
Executive Officer and a founder of Pan Asian Mortgage Company Limited, a
mortgage securitization conduit. Mr. SUN has over 20 years of secondary
mortgage market experience in Asia and the United States, directly involved in
the structuring, trading and distribution of mortgage-backed securities globally.
In 1997, Mr. SUN was appointed by the Financial Secretary of the Hong Kong
SAR government as the first Chief Operating Officer of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation and was entrusted with managing this 100% government-owned
company. Previously, Mr. SUN was an Executive Director in the Fixed Income
International Sales Department of GS (Asia) Securities Limited and was
employed by Goldman Sachs from July 1986 to October 1994. He was also a
Senior Managing Director of the Emerging Markets Fixed Income Sales
Department with Bear Stearns Asia Limited from October 1994 to February
1996. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 14 November 2005.

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique, 50, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company. He was an Adjunct Assistant Professor of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong from September 2001 to January 2002. He has experience in
architectural design. Currently, he is a director of BTR Workshop Limited, an
architectural and design company based in Hong Kong. He was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on 14 November 2005.

BB SE - BF495% 0 NRREMIENITES o RAE
E—NNARNFR2ERIMAREBSEEIR B IAER
RETEMN - BEE DN RTRBESFBRAF (—HEILEB
BHERF) MITBRERAIMA - BAEEREMNRER
FIRIBTHBEEA - T 4R ERSBERNIZIEES
HEBRE RHERDHEIIE - —hWhtF BRELES
BERBNVRAARETEABBIRIBESFERAREM
THEE  AEEENVEMBF2EBENAR B
= BEER—NANARFLAZ—NAANUF+ A - &
=B ER - WTEGS (Asia) Securities Limited#IFixed Income
International Sales Departmentl (EE/TE SH « — N JLUF
TRAE-—ANAARFE_RERA  BEEBRMEEMBERAR
H)Emerging Markets Fixed Income Sales Department £ {5
MERHKE - _TTRF+—A+NHE - FEZEADR
NEBYIEMITES -

BRETSEE - FES06  ARAIBUIEMITES - BR
—EEFAAER-EE -F— AHRNEIE BT KRS
FEBIEHIR  MEEERNATELCHR - Bl BABS
— BB SE R 512 ABTR Workshop Limited W E % - — 2=
AF+—A+HA FEZTARNARBULIENITES -
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The directors of the Company (“Directors”) have pleasure in presenting their
report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2010.

Principal Activities

The Group is principally engaged in property development and property
investment businesses in the PRC.

Results and Dividend
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the state of
affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 35 to 115.

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final dividend of 0.5 HK
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Convertible Notes and Share Capital
Details of the movements in the Company’s convertible notes and share capital

during the year are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the financial statements
respectively.

Reserves
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during

the year are set out in note 30 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves
At 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,

amounted to approximately HK$48.5 million, of which approximately HK$6.4
million has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties for investment purposes and under
development are set out on pages 117 to 120.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of

association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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EEERE
Group Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 116.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Other than
the issue of 109,200,000 shares by the Company during the year, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s
shares during the year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director)

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence

Mr. YIM Chun Leung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, Mr. CHAN Bernard
Charnwut, Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun and Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company considers such Directors to be independent.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 14 to 16.
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Directors’ Service Agreements

The former service agreements entered into between the Company and each
executive director expired on 30 November 2009. On 18 November 2009, each
of the executive directors of the Company entered into a new service agreement
(the “New Service Agreement”) with the Company for a term of 25 months
commencing on 1 December 2009 and is subject to termination by the
executive director or the Company in the manner as set out in the New Service
Agreements.

The former letters of appointment entered into by the Company and the non-
executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company expired on 13 November 2008. On 22 October 2008, the non-
executive director and each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company have each entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing on 14 November 2008; and such letters of
appointment may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written
notice.

Under the New Service Agreements, other than the three executive directors
(also substantial shareholders) whose first month’s salary under the New
Service Agreements was reduced by half, all the monthly salaries of the other
executive directors were reinstated to the original levels as in the former services
agreements expired on 30 November 2009. After the expiry of the first month of
the New Service Agreements, the monthly salary of all executive directors of the
Company reverted back to that of the former service agreements expired on
30 November 2009.

With effect from 1 January 2011, the salaries of the executive directors were
increased by 7% per month and the salary of the chairman of audit committee
was increased to HK$20,000 per month and the salaries of the rest of the non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) were each
increased to HK$15,000 per month.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting have a contract of service
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation (except for statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts
Details of Directors’ interests in contracts of significance in relation to the

Group’s business are set out in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares and

Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2010, the Directors had the following interests in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of
the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”):

EERFETBRAEBRERTNKREG RHE
RO ERNES

RZB-—ZF+-_RA=+—8 BREAQAREESFRHPE
150 (TRE 7 R EIRD)) E35216MEFERR MR
EERARA AN MR A R
RES EHRA (T EHRAD FRESETESFZSN
BRAEFRIAAEM T AR R B R Z A EENT

AR R B

(A) Interest in shares and underlying shares under equity derivatives of the A RELXTBRVWEZRARKITETIATHERSG
Company P
Number of Approximate
underlying shares percentage of
(under equity the issued share
Long position/ Number of derivatives of Aggregate capital of
Name of Director Short position Capacity Shares held the Company) Interests the Company
HER®
A (RA EAEE
DE A BITRAZ
ESMA wr/ %R 545 RO BE fTEIAT) BRAE BMABDH
Mr. TAOCHAIFU Long Position Interests of 651,882,278 663,397,278 51.88
Choofuang TR controlled (Note 1)
BEHEEE corporation (Hfat1)
R LB R
Long Position Personal interest 11,515,000
HE AR
Mr. TAO Richard Long Position Interests of 651,882,278 674,584,035 52.76
BRI EE TE controlled (Note 1)
corporation (Ktat1)
ZEEEER
Long Position Personal interest 22,701,757
HE AR
Mr. TAO Paul Long Position Interests of 651,882,278 674,584,035 52.76
PR E & HE controlled (Note 1)
corporation (Fy7%1)
XEEE R
Long Position Personal interest 22,701,757
He EAER
Mr. KONG Mui Long Position Personal interest 2,500,220 11,515,000 14,015,220 1.10
Sum Lawrence HE BAER (Note 2)
IHRREE (Hfet2)
Mr. YIM Chun Leung Long Position Personal interest 1,232,605 11,515,000 12,747,605 1.00
B E A we BARER (Note 2)
(Kiet2)
20 New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2010



Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company (Cont'd)

(A)

(B)

Interest in shares and underlying shares under equity derivatives of the
Company (Cont'd)

Notes:

1.

Belbroughton Limited (“Belbroughton”) is the legal and beneficial owner of
651,882,278 shares. Belbroughton is owned as to 20% by Seal United
Investments Limited (“Seal United”) and 80% by United Islands Group
Limited (“United Islands”). Seal United is owned by Mr. TAOCHAIFU
Choofuang (“Mr. C.F. TAO”) and his spouse, Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew
Nancy (“Mrs. TAO”) in equal proportions. United Islands is owned by
Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard (the son of Mr. C.F. TAO),
Mr. TAO Paul (the son of Mr. C.F. TAO) and Ms. TAO Miriam (the daughter
of Mr. C.F. TAO) in equal proportions. Accordingly, Seal United, United
Islands as well as Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul
and Ms. TAO Miriam are deemed to be interested in 651,882,278 shares
held by Belbroughton.

Share options were granted on 29 April 2008, 21 July 2008 and
19 November 2008 respectively. Details of share options granted to the
Directors of the Company are set out in part (B) of this section.

Long position in underlying shares — share options

Under the share option scheme of the Company, share option may be
granted to certain participants including the Directors and employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares of the
Company. Details of share options granted to the Directors are as follows:

Directors’ Report

ESEWRE

EERFETHRAEBRERATNKRG RE

BARGOPERNES )

W) RERARGUESRRBREFETATHEBRS
2 ()
it -

1.

Belbroughton Limited ([Belbroughton]) &
651,882,278 i fh B & A E # %A A ° Seal United
Investments Limited ([Seal United]) & United Islands
Group Limited ([United Islands]) % Bl # &
Belbroughton 20% % 80% 2 # = ° Seal UnitedJ4 /1
BEEEE((BEEEE]) RERBEERR LT
([ AK]) BB ELLBIEA © MUnited Islands Bl
BEmEE BAK BRTEEEEHEEZR
F) - BHHEEBEBREZRT) KEBRL LT
(MEEEEZZR)RBELOIES - Bt - Seal
United ~ United IslandsZERMEEH L E ~ FIAK
BRI E  WHEECERBARLTHERAR
BelbroughtonFi3% 4 2 #25651,882,278 f% 1h # A
W o

BEREDDIR-_ZFZENFONA=-FTAA -
—TEENFLA-+-BR-ZETNF+-A
THERE - RFARRERZEREFB DR
REBIET °

(B) MHERHOzFE-BRE

RBARBZERESS  BREUTRTETSH
AN BREERARFNENBAR ZEE) ARE
ARBZB - RTESZBREFBEOT

Number of share options

BREHE
Balance at Granted Lapsed Balance at Exercise
1 January during during 31 December price
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period 2010 the year the year 2010 per share
dd/mm/yyyy dd/mm/yyyy HK$
B
i E-ZF
ZE-%% +=A
-A-8 RER RER =+-A8 gk
ESER BiAH TERE ZBE B F3:d prd o3 fieE
R/R/& B/R/% BT
Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - 3,765,636 - 0.6350 Mot (F7z2)
BEELE
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 - 0.5240
Mr. TAO Richard 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - 3,765,636 - 0.6350 Mot (i)
BRTEE
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 - 0.5240
Mr. TAO Paul 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - 3,765,636 - 0.6350 Mot (Fiiz)
mHELE
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 - 0.5240
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company (Cont'd)

(B) Long position in underlying shares — share options (Cont'd)

EERFETBRAEBRERTNKREG RHE
BEROTPEENER (&)

(B) MHEROzZHE-BRE R

Number of share options

BREHA
Balance at Granted Lapsed Balance at Exercise
1 January during during 31 December price
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period 2010 the year the year 2010 per share
dd/mm/yyyy dd/mm/yyyy HK$
R®
®» —E-Ef
—E-EF +=A
—-B-H RER RER =t-H gk
ESER REBH Ggcd il 288 R P 28 TE
B/R/& B/R/& BT
Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence  04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - 3,765,636 - 0.6350 (ete) (Ffi2)
IHRREE
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 - 0.5240
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - - 3,200,000 0.3750
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - - 4,571,000 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 - - 3,744,000 0.1915
Mr. YIM Chun Leung 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - 3,765,636 - 0.6350 (Mote) (i)
BRiRREE
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - 3,600,000 - 0.5240
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - - 3,200,000 0.3750
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - - 4,571,000 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 - - 3,744,000 0.1915

Note: Pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme, following the adjustment
events arising from the changes in the Company'’s capital structure in 2007,
the respective exercise prices per share of the unexercised options and the
respective number of share options exercisable have been adjusted. The
auditor of the Company have certified the adjustments were fair and
reasonable.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors, chief executives
and their associates, had any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO at the date of this
report.

Fiat - MBI SMNET - R-FRLFARRBRA
BB EBPAEI BMABER - RTTEBREZ
FRENEBZTERERATEZBRES 8BRD
HEBFHAR - AARZZEME EBRERBRE
TIAFHMAIRE -

B EXWEEI  ARBZESR  TBTHRABRREEFZ
B ABHER AN QA S E AR ARE A B 2 By R AE R R 1
BREMEREIOAR - NFIREH LI E RG] 352{F 7
R HETIARR R -
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under section 336
of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2010, the Company had
been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests, being 5% or

Directors’ Report
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TERRRADANRG RABRRD T 5%
BHER

REE S R EEOIEXVEB336IHA T FENE M
T RIEEEL A=+ R ARFAZEERR (B
KRB ZBETIRANS%E A L) EBMARAFRE

more of the Company’s issued share capital: & RO
Long position in shares R zEFR
Approximate
percentage of
the issued
Long position/ Number of Aggregate share capital
Name of Shareholder Short position Capacity Shares held Interests ~ of the Cuz'rgpany Notes
L
\ \ ERARA }
RREE #E/ %R ) FEROEE ERBE BAEAL fiat
Mrs. TAO POON Lai Yew Nancy Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 663,397,278 51.88% I
MEBERT e FEEBER
Long position Interest of spouse 11,515,000
£ B BER
Belbroughton Limited Long position Beneficial owner 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.98% 1
55} BREEA
Seal United Investments Limited Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.98% 1
8 Fik B
United Islands Group Limited Long position Interests of controlled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.98% 1
HE REEE#ER
Ms. TAO Miriam Long position Interests ofhcgntrolled corporation 651,882,278 651,882,278 50.98% 1
MRt e RELEER
Tian Xiang Business Limited Long position Beneficial owner 150,000,000 150,000,000 11.73% A
AEEBERRT e ExBEEAA TEH
Spinnaker Capital Limited Long position Investment manager 92,322,673 92,322,673 1.22% 2
55} RELE
Spinnaker Asset Management Long position Investment manager 92,322,673 92,322,673 7.22% 2
— SAM Limited 55) RERR
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft Long position Person having a security 92,322,673 92,322,673 7.22% 3
BESR e interest in shares
BRHHEREEROA
As{a Financial Holdings Limited Long position @ﬂep{efifial owner 45,454 545 68,181,818 5.06% 4
TR ERE (R BRAF 55 ExEBA
Long position Interests of controlled corporation 22,727,273
55} XAEAEER
Notes: Hiat -
1. Belbroughton is the legal and beneficial owner of 651,882,278 shares. 1. Belbroughton £651,882,2784 & (1 Y & /=B =B A © Seal
Belbroughton is owned as to 20% by Seal United and 80% by United Islands. Seal United &2 United Islands > 51|#E 5 Belbroughton 20% }&80% 2 #
United is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO and his spouse, Mrs. TAO in equal proportions. % o Seal United Jh B3 FB B9 9t A e HL IR B PE R K IR EE L1
United Islands is owned by Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul %7 - mUnited Islands BIAMEHELE - AKX -
and Ms. TAO Miriam in equal proportions. Accordingly, Seal United, United Islands MM A -~ MRS KRB Is L IR EEL IES -
as well as Mr. C.F. TAO, Mrs. TAO, Mr. TAO Richard, Mr. TAO Paul and Ms. TAO Miriam I, + Seal United * United Islands:@ [FIfE & 504 ~ AKX -
are deemed to be interested in 651,882,278 shares held by Belbroughton. MR E  MGEHLERBBRLZTHEER AR
Belbroughton T A 2 3% % 651,882,278 i 17 #E A 25 °
2. Spinnaker Capital Limited and Spinnaker Asset Management — SAM Limited 2. Spinnaker Capital Limited K Spinnaker Asset Management —

(together “Spinnaker Group”) are investment managers and the controlling
shareholders of Spinnaker Global Opportunity Fund Limited (“GO Fund”),
Spinnaker Global Emerging Markets Fund Limited, (“GEM Fund”) and Spinnaker
Global Strategic Fund Limited (“GS Fund”). GO Fund, GEM Fund and GS Fund
held 24,927,122 shares, 44,314,883 shares and 23,080,668 shares, respectively.

SAM Limited (4578 [Spinnaker&£ @ |) AR E&IE - BETY
Spinnaker Global Opportunity Fund Limited ([GOE &) -
Spinnaker Global Emerging Markets Fund Limited ([GEMZ
4 1) FSpinnaker Global Strategic Fund Limited ([GSE % |)
ZERRRE c GOES C GEMES RGSESHAIFE
24,927 122/ ~ 44,314,8830% £ 23,080,668/% A% 1 °
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company (Cont'd)

Long position in shares (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont'd)

3. The shares are held under Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft custody for
Spinnaker Group.

4. These 68,181,818 underlying shares represent the shares which may be issued
upon full conversion of 5% convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$75 million with maturity date falling 60 months from 15 October 2007, the
date of issue of the convertible notes.

Share Options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the movements in the share
options are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 41%
— five largest suppliers combined 69%
Sales

— the largest customer 1%
— five largest customers combined 4%

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5%
of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers.

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group had the following connected transactions/continuing
connected transaction, certain details of which were disclosed in compliance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

1. HK$75 million 5% Convertible Notes Subscription Agreement

On 10 August 2007, the Company entered into a subscription agreement
with Asia Financial Holdings Limited (“AFHL”) and Asia Insurance
Company, Limited (“AICL") (AICL is a subsidiary of AFHL which is
controlled by the associates of Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut, the non-
executive director of the Company) whereby the Company agreed to
issue and AFHL and AICL agreed to subscribe the HK$50 million and
HK$25 million 5% convertible note (“Convertible Notes”) with maturity
date falling 60 months from the date of issue of the Convertible Notes
respectively. Pursuant to the term of the Convertible Notes, the holder of
the Convertible Notes can convert the Convertible Notes at the
conversion price of HK$1.10 per share. The principal amount of HK$35
million (HK$25 million for AFHL and HK$10 million for AICL) of the
Convertible Notes shall be compulsorily converted at the conversion price
of HK$1.10 within seven business days if the closing price per share is
HK$1.10 or higher for ten consecutive trading days during the period
from the issue day of the Convertible Notes up to five business days prior
to the maturity date. This transaction was approved by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on
10 October 2007. The Convertible Notes were issued on 15 October 2007.

FERRRAQFANRG RAEBERD - %
BHER (#)

Ri 2R (&)

Htat o ()

3. et Ty i {8 B A5 R 1T K SpinnakerE EFEE ©

4. #%%68,181 818K MNIEEZEALEASBER
75,000,000/ L2 5% IR (A —F2FLF+A+ARA
(PR RIEEITE B) 5Hm60ME A & B2 H) Al F3#17
ZRBHD o

B

BRARRR Z BT 3 RS R E B = BB B 75 3R
F=MHPEE29

TEHEBREF
AEMITREBEREFAERBREEALEMT :

HEE
—BRAEER 41%
—AAHEEAHATE 69%
SHERE
—EAEP 1%
—~AREFAHE 4%

BEARTEEHHEABEALREABRR RESH
HAARRA D BEITRASRIA L) RAFEEAREES
AEBRAAREP 2 EmEan -

BEXS

AEERFRET T 2BER S HERBERS - £
LFBEEET ETRANRERE -

1. 75,000,000/ 5% 7] #2 IR 45 3% 18 7 =5

RZZZLFNATH  KAREGNEEERE (2
) BRAR ([EMER)) REMRRER QT ([
MR GEMRBR AR MBAR M
BEBARBIFNTEERE AL ZBEAZESN) %
FIREEE - Bk ARRRBBETMEMERKRE
IMIRBE 9 BII R & 52 #%50,000,0007%8 7T %.25,000,0007%
TTZ5% IR R ([P RER]) - ATRREER
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Connected Transactions (Cont'd)

Acquisition of Property

On 16 July 2010, Honour Mark Holdings limited (“Honour Mark”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
acquisition agreement with Fontwell Holdings Limited (“Fontwell”)
(beneficially owned by Mr. C.F. TAO and his family members) for
acquisition from Fontwell of Room 2301, 23rd Floor, Fortis Tower (“Fortis
Tower”) Nos. 77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (the “Office
Property”) then occupied under the tenancy agreement dated
2 December 2009 entered into between New Heritage Management
Limited (“NH Management”) as tenant and Fontwell as landlord relating
to the lease of, among others, the Office Property for use by the Group for
a term of 2 years from 1 February 2010 to 31 January 2012 and the car
parking spaces nos. 28 and 51 on the 2nd Floor of Fortis Tower (the “Car
Parking Spaces”) then used under the licence agreement dated
2 December 2009 entered into between NH Management as licensee
and Fontwell as Licensor for obtaining the licence to use by the Group of,
among others, the Car Parking Spaces for a term of 2 years from
1 February 2010 to 31 January 2012 (the “Acquisition”). The total
consideration for the Acquisition amounting to HK$27,300,000, was
settled by the Company allotting and issuing, credited as fully paid,
109,200,000 new shares to Belbroughton Limited, as directed by
Fontwell at the issue price of HK$0.25 per consideration share on
3 September 2010. Before the above Acquisition, the Group occupied
the Office Property and the Car Parking Spaces under the aforesaid
tenancy agreement and licence agreement, respectively and which
constituted continuing connected transaction to the Group.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
the above continuing connected transaction and confirmed that the
above continuing connected transaction has been entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance
with the above relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole. The auditor of the Company have confirmed in a letter to the
board of directors of the Company to the effect that the above continuing
connected transaction: (i) has been approved by the board of directors
of the Company; (ii) has been entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing the transaction; and (iii) the aggregate
annual amount of the transaction has not exceeded the relevant caps
disclosed in the previous announcement.
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ESERE
Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as “Related
Parties” under applicable accounting principles. These mainly relate to
contracts entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of business, which
contracts were negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length
basis. Further details are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Some of these transactions also constitute “Continuing Connected Transactions”
under the Listing Rules, as mentioned above.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

During the year, the interests of Directors in the businesses which compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules was as follows:

Family members of Mr. C.F. TAO, Chairman of the Company including
Mr. TAO Richard, Vice Chairman beneficially owned two villas in Suzhou of a
total gross floor area of approximately 770.76 sq.m. developed by a subsidiary
of the Company which may constitute a competing business to the Group.

Mr. C.F. TAO and his spouse, Mrs. TAO Poon Lai Yew Nancy executed a non-
competition deed on 16 November 2005 (the “Deed”). Mr. and Mrs. C.F. TAO
have also provided an annual confirmation to the Company confirming their
compliance with the non-competition undertaking as specified in the Deed.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 27 to 32 of this report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

Due to the merger of practices of Grant Thornton and BDO Limited, Grant
Thornton resigned as auditor of the Company with effect from 15 December
2010 and BDO Limited was then appointed as auditor of the Company with
effect from 15 December 2010. The financial statements have been audited by
BDO Limited whose term of appointment will end at the conclusion of the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. Tao)
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2011

BEALRS

AEERERBERE T RABRBBEALIZ AL
ETRS - WERXRHGTEFSRAEENRAEEGBETE
—REEGRTEATRANERMI L 2AK - HtBRGF
BRI TS M S T34 -

MARERZIER LR R T BERERS] -

EENBERE 2 ES

RERN - EFARBEMRAZRERBELHEFEAEH
EBEEKEEBRA TR AT 2 X 2R T

ARABEIFEHEHLENREXRE (BHREAETRE
PRI L) BEREARARR M E AR ZRENEM
e Bl E2 (R EEETEAD770.76F 73 0K) » UL S AT e Ak 2
REBBRFOE -

RZZEZERF+—-—A+RE BEELTERERSB
FEBELLTERF O THEFRO([24]) - BRER
AR RAARRRRFERRE  BRLETRAON
R Z T E S oGS o

EEER

ARBFMRMNEZLRERAERORE  HRAFRE
27E32E

RANNTBRERE

BREARBURAMEGERENENRREARBEESH
Ao RAFRAH - ARREBTRH ZARFRERT
DR25% ©

BB Em

ENE ST REEE L ERREIMEBAERAF
EHER  HEEHMTR_Z—SF T _AT+RAEE
ARBZ BT EELERRGMEEMERABR
“E-ZF+ AT ARERERRDR ZREED - ¥TF
BROHBEBIUGEERREGTMEBRERATER - HE
HBETERRASERBILERTAERILBBERET -
EEERBFRGHEZEREB LGRS ERA
BERABABRRBREEMZRER -

EEEGD
FRE
kags)

HE —_E——F=A+XH

26 New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2010



The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality board, transparency and accountability to all shareholders
of the Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group has complied with
the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in Appendix 14, the Code of
Corporate Governance Practices, of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Board will continue to monitor and review the Group’s corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the Code Provisions.

Board Composition

The Board comprises five executive directors, one non-executive director and
three independent non-executive directors. All five executive directors are
members of the executive committee of the Company responsible for dealing
with the business of the Company in accordance with all applicable rules and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). All Directors (including
independent non-executive directors) have been consulted on all major and
material matters of the Company.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2010 were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director)

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence

Mr. YIM Chun Leung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

The number of independent non-executive directors meets the requirements
under the Listing Rules and Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai has the appropriate
accounting professional qualification. The Company has appointed a Managing
Director instead of a chief executive officer.

The positions of the Chairman and the Managing Director are held separately
by two executive directors to ensure their respective independence,
accountability and responsibility. The Chairman is responsible for determining
overall business strategies of the Group. The duty of the Chairman is to work
closely with audit, nomination and remuneration committee of the Company
and to ensure that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in
a timely and constructive manner. The Managing Director is responsible for
general management of the Group. The Managing Director is also responsible
to work closely with the executive committee of the Company to ensure
management strategies, plans and performance of the Group are appropriately
represented to the Board and to provide guidance to the Board on major issues.
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Board Composition (Cont'd)

The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim results,
succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and financial matters.
Major corporate matters that are specially delegated by the Board to the
management include the preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls
and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (C.F. Tao), the Chairman of the Company, is the
father of Mr. TAO Richard, the Vice Chairman of the Company, and
Mr. TAO Paul, Managing Director of the Company. Further details of the
Directors are set out on pages 14 to 16 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The non-executive
director and all the independent non-executive directors have contracts with
the Company for a period of three years commencing from 14 November 2008
which may be terminated by either party by giving one month’s written notice
and subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

All the minutes of the Board meeting are kept by the company secretary and
are available for inspection by the Directors and auditor of the Company.

Attendance Record at Board Meetings

For the year ended 31 December 2010, four regular full Board meetings were
held to review the business of the Group and to approve the financial results of
the Group and the attendance of individual members at the meetings of the
Board are set out as follows:—
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Meetings attended/Number of Meeting held
HESRBRE BITERRH

Executive Director BITEE
Mr. TAOCHAIFU Choofuang (Chairman) MWEBELE (EE)
Mr. TAO Richard (Vice Chairman) BRI E (BIEE)

Mr. TAO Paul (Managing Director)

Mr. KONG Mui Sum Lawrence LIRS A
Mr. YIM Chun Leung BIR S E A
Non-Executive Director FHITESE
Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut PRES B A&
Independent Non-Executive Director BUYFHTESE
Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai FREXE
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun FI Bt
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PR 42 32 e

P (EFARK

4/4
4/4

#) 4/4

4/4
4/4

2/4

4/4
4/4
3/4
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Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. The obligation to follow the Listing Rules are set out in the terms of
the service contracts of each executive director and the letters of appointment
of the non-executive director and each independent non-executive director.
Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2010.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 14 November 2005 with
terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. The Audit
Committee consists of independent non-executive directors only. The members
of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai (Chairman)
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai, who possesses a professional accounting qualification
and relevant accounting experience, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
No member of the Audit Committee is a member of the former or existing
auditor of the Company.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and approve the
financial reporting process and internal control systems of the Group. During
the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s interim result for the six
months ended 30 June 2010. The Group’s final results for the year ended
31 December 2010 have been reviewed by the members of the Audit
Committee before submission to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee
was of the opinion that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosure have been made. In March 2011, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed the Group’s internal control review report prepared by an external
independent professional consultant.

Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year. The
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attendance of each member is set out as follows: HHAT -

Name of member Meetings attended/Number of Meeting held
REBRE HESBERE E2T8BRHE

Mr. WONG Gary Ka Wai FRELAE 3/3

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun R B L& 2/3

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrigue PR 4 3 S A 3/3

Nomination Committee REZEEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 14 November 2005 with
terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. The members of the
Nomination Committee consist of one executive director and two independent
non-executive directors.
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Nomination Committee (Contd)

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique (Chairman)
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun
Mr. TAO Paul

The primary duty of the Nomination Committee is making recommendations to
the Board on appointment and removal of directors and management of Board
succession. No director is appointed or removed during the year.

The Nomination Committee has considered the past performance, qualification,
general market conditions and the Company’s articles of association in selecting
and recommending directors for retirement rotation.

The Nomination Committee resolved that all the existing directors should be
recommended to be retained by the Company. Further, in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association, Mr. CHAN Bernard Charnwut,
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun and Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique would retire, and
being eligible, would offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

One meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Meeting attended/Number of Meeting held
HEEBREBTERRE

RERRE

Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique RR 423 S0
Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun FI Bt
Mr. TAO Paul P 5k &

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 14 November 2005
with terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. The members
of the Remuneration Committee consist of one executive director and two
independent non-executive directors.

The members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique
Mr. TAO Richard

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review and determine
the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable
to Directors and senior management including the recommendation to the
Board on the granting of share options to Directors pursuant to the share option
scheme adopted by the Company.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed
the existing terms of remunerations of all the Directors. The Remuneration
Committee has considered factors including salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee considered that the existing terms
of remunerations of the Directors were fair and reasonable.
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Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)

One meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year. The
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Name of member
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Meeting attended/Number of Meeting held
HESBRE EBTEBERE

REEB

Mr. SUN Leland Li Hsun BB E
Mr. CHAN Norman Enrique PR 4457 S
Mr. TAO Richard e i e

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal controls of the
Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal controls system to safeguard the
interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to the
management the implementation of the system of internal controls and the
review of all relevant financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management functions within an established framework.

During the year under review, the Company engaged an external independent
professional consultant to review the effectiveness of certain of the Group’s
system of internal controls. Relevant applicable recommendations made by a
previous consultant in the past have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures and practices.

Investor Relationship and Communication

The Company endeavors to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community at large.
Briefings and meetings with institutional investors and analysts are conducted
at opportune times. The Company is committed to continue to maintain an
open and effective investor communication policy and to update investors on
relevant information on its business in a timely manner, subject to relevant
regulatory requirements. In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate
communications with the investors and analysts, all corporate communications
are arranged and handled by the executive directors with the assistance of an
independent corporate communication firm and designated senior executives
according to established practices and procedures of the Company. The
Company has announced its annual results of the year under review in a timely
manner. Further enhanced communication channels will be reflected in the
ongoing update and improvement of the Group’s corporate website features
through collaboration with a well-qualified digital agent.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which
give a true and fair view. In preparing such financial statements, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

The auditor’s responsibility is to express an independent opinion, based on their
audit, on those financial statements and to report their opinion to the
shareholders of the Company, as a body, and for no other purpose. The auditor
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of the independent auditor’s report.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of results and cash flows for that year. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

Auditor’s Remuneration
The fee in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by the

independent auditor for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to
HK$1,136,000 and HK$150,000 respectively.
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BDO

BEE 1 +852 2541 5041
fEE : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2541 5041
Fax : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR E

25" Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of New Heritage Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Heritage
Holdings Ltd. (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set
out on pages 35 to 115, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR E

IBDO

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2010,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chiu Wing Cheung Ringo
Practising Certificate Number: P0O4434

Hong Kong, 16 March 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

Consolidated Income Statement

e WER

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETTNF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

i & FHET F& T
Revenue &= 7 375,526 258,865
Cost of sales $HE A AR (297,880) (215,930)
Gross profit EF 77,646 42935
Other income H A 7 4,965 2,164
Selling expenses HERS (16,789) (14,936)
Administrative expenses THRSE (41,648) (30,341)
Fair value adjustments on investment properties BEMENAREEAE 15 18,883 7,360
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of investment properties HEREYENRE, (Ei8) 6,307 (1,754)
Finance costs & B AR 8 (18,616) (26,252)
Share of results of associates FE(REEE R AR 13,424 6,090
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale eI SRS R

financial asset AEMKS = 32,869
Profit before income tax BRETBB AT &R 9 44,172 18,135
Income tax expense FrisBimX 10 (17,379) (6,133)
Profit for the year FERF 26,793 12,002
Profit for the year attributable to: DTFTATEREFERR :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETP 323 18,061 15,854
Non-controlling interests e AR A 2 8,732 (3,852)
26,793 12,002
Earnings per share attributable to the owners FRXRATREENS
of the Company during the year SREF 12
HK cents HK cents
AL Al
- Basic - EXx 1.5 1.4
— Diluted — #5 1.5 1.4
FRERARAT —E-TEEH 35



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_Z-—ZF+_A=+—HLLFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Ex FHET
Profit for the year FERR 26,793 12,002
Other comprehensive income Hb2EUWA
Exchange gain on translation of BMEBINER R B HRE A
financial statements of foreign operations P 5, Wz 24,445 -
Share of exchange gain on translation of bR E —EHE QRN EHRELN
financial statements of an associate R 3,041 =
Share of revaluation surplus of an Eh—EBE AR BEMESR
associate’s hotel property &R 4,536 5,149
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEHME2EmEKA
net of tax (R B E %) 32,022 5,149
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXEWBAHE 58,815 17,151
Total comprehensive income attributable to: UTATEEEZEKRALEE:
Owners of the Company NN 43,645 21,003
Non-controlling interests FEPE R 2 15,170 (3,852)
58,815 17,151
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As at 31 December 2010
RZE—ZTF+A=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR R R

As at 31 December

As at 1 January

R+=—HA=+—H R—H—H
2010 2009 2009
—ZE-ZF —ZETTNF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt it FHExT T FHT
(restated) (restated)
(K& E75) (L& E75)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Goodwill (5SS 13 37,048 37,048 37,048
Property, plant and equipment VI - B KRR 14 64,522 26,004 29,665
Investment properties LEYEHE 15 286,764 297,781 311,754
Interests in associates RN O e 17 124,757 110,947 123,674
Available-for-sale financial asset AHHENSREE - = 43,318
Deferred tax assets BIERBEE 18 1,929 1,880 1,898
515,020 473,660 547,357
Current assets RENEE
Properties held under development ERPYE 19 521,244 541,855 657,376
Properties held for sale FEmE 20 149,537 134,465 58,753
Inventories FE 21 78 101 121
Accounts receivable FEUAR 3R 22 41 353 149
Deposits paid, prepayments and Bff&Ee - BAFIEKR
other receivables _ H b RIA 23 32,335 36,000 37,024
Restricted bank deposits SR AIRITFER 31 18,712 8,068 9,165
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBECEEY 32 422,108 348,296 125,973
1,144,055 1,069,138 888,561
Total assets wEE 1,659,075 1,542,798 1,435,918
Current liabilities REBE
Accounts payable FE A BR 3K 24 87,883 38,993 55,842
Accruals, deposits received and EETER BElRiEe R
other payables H e IR 25 71,982 81,334 35,133
Provision for tax T IR 5,638 9,770 10,886
Borrowings ge 26 285,996 187,339 106,218
451,499 317,436 208,079
Net current assets TEEEFRE 692,556 751,702 680,482
Total assets less current liahilities HEERRBAES 1,207,576 1,225,362 1,227,839
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Borrowings BE 26 148,571 250,677 270,263
Convertible notes Al =T 27 73,672 72,942 72,212
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE 18 36,038 30,118 30,009
258,281 353,737 372,484
Total liabilities we s 709,780 671,173 580,563
NET ASSETS BEEFE 949,295 871,625 855,355
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to RN T IR R
the Company’s owners BARFE
Share capital [N 28 12,786 11,694 11,628
Reserves fEE 30(a) 847,357 772,197 754,075
Proposed final dividend BRAREAIR B 11 6,393 4,678 =
866,536 788,569 765,703
Non-controlling interests IF 22 R R 2 82,759 83,056 89,652
TOTAL EQUITY A 949,295 871,625 855,355
TAO Richard TAO Paul
(G P 85 1
Director Director
EE EE
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Statement of Financial Position

B H5 51K o R 3Rk

As at 31 December 2010
RZE—ZEF+_A=+—H

2010 2009
—ZE-ZF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k23 FHET F&T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB R RIMIRE 16(a) 131,505 119,674
Current assets REEE
Prepayments FERRIE 284 582
Amounts due from subsidiaries = NGIE S 16(b) 502,261 458,466
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFCEEY 32 140 5,178
502,685 464,226
Total assets HWEE 634,190 583,900
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FEST B B & H b e 5kI8 6,576 2,679
Borrowings BE 26 = 10,000
Amount due to a subsidiary FETHYE 2 R sRIE 16(b) 15 —
Financial guarantee contracts HISERE D 36 131 276
6,722 12,955
Net current assets REBEEFE 495,963 451,271
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 627,468 570,945
Non-current liabilities FkRBEME
Convertible notes A R 27 73,672 72,942
Deferred tax liabilities BEEREAR 18 220 340
73,892 73,282
Total liabilities weE 80,614 86,237
NET ASSETS BEFE 553,576 497,663
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to AATRREMN
the Company’s owners RA R &
Share capital [i@N 28 12,786 11,694
Reserves ki 30(b) 534,397 481,291
Proposed final dividend R R BRI B 11 6,393 4,678
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 553,576 497,663
TAO Richard TAO Paul
BRI [GE RS
Director Director
EFE EFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HERERER

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETTNF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
K&t FHET F& T
Cash flows from operating activities KETHNEERE
Profit before income tax bR B 1S 357 AT & F 44,172 18,135
Adjustments for: HEIER -
Depreciation e 4,032 4,081
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE  BER&E
and equipment K5 18 40 417
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREWEN (RS EE (6,307) 1,754
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEENSREE
financial asset ol g - (32,869)
Fair value adjustments on investment properties REYWENDABEAE (18,883) (7,360)
Share of results of associates FE(REE & N AR (13,424) (6,090)
Impairment loss of other receivables H b e WK IB R R E B 1B 1,055 =
Interest income A B WA (2,583) (857)
Interest expenses FERX 18,616 26,252
Operating profit before working RETEEECEFRILE
capital changes 2 F 26,718 3,463
Decrease in properties held under development ERAMERGEMF
and properties held for sale VR 29,065 40,635
Decrease in inventories GFERD 23 20
Decrease/(Increase) in accounts receivable JE U BR FOR A (38 A0) 312 (204)
Decrease in deposits paid, prepayments and Bt - BAREREM
other receivables FE W SR TE R 2,610 1,024
Increase in accounts payable, accruals, ERER - EHER  BliEe
deposits received and other payables K2 B A & < SR IE 38 AN 39,538 29,352
Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due from FE W & R B IR
associates B>, (35 hn) 32 (18)
(Increase)/Decrease in restricted bank deposits ZRRFIERITER (G R (10,644) 1,097
Cash generated from operations REEEEENIRS 87,654 75,369
Interest paid EEENESS (16,124) (15,282)
Income taxes paid B ATEH (16,482) (7,122)
Net cash from operating activities CEEHELNIRESFEE 55,048 52,965
SERRERAT —E-EEEH 39



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

fan IEI%/)"JE% (%)

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_Z-—ZF+_A=+—HLLFE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt e FET F&T
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHNEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWME  BEREE (3,776) (1,028)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and Hz'E%% BB &
equipment BB E A 768 83
Proceeds from sale of investment properties HEREYEMSGKIE 43,498 19,579
Additions to available-for-sale financial asset AREAHEHENSREE - (9,966)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEAREENSREE
financial asset FT1S 308 = 86,153
Capital contribution to an associate m—EgE A a L E - (4)
Dividends received from an associate U B — T B & R RO AR B 7,159 23,988
Interest received 2 8 2,583 857
Net cash from investing activities KEREENIR S FR 50,232 119,662
Cash flows from financing activities METENRERE
Proceeds from issuance of share capital BITRAFTBRRIE - 1,269
Proceeds from new borrowings BB EMERIE 134,250 189,808
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (144,590) (128,993)
Interest paid on convertible notes BT BREEF S (3,750) (3,750)
Capital reduction to a non-controlling shareholder — — B[ B A & &9 3F 22 A% A% 5 m &
of a subsidiary (19,656) -
Dividends paid to Company’s owners EAARA B RRERE (4,678) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholder BT FEIERR AR R AR B (384) (2,150)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities BMEES (FTA) ELENREFHE (38,808) 56,184
Net increase in cash and HeRRESEEY
cash equivalents HIEEE 66,472 228,811
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and EREHURESRRLEEY
cash equivalents -2 7,340 -
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—HWNERER
at 1 January HEEEY 348,296 119,485
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—A=+—HBHERER
at 31 December REEEY 32 422,108 348,296
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE-Z—2E+-A=t+—ALEE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERRBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAARFEERS
Hotel
prperty,
Convertible plant and
Share Totes equipment Proposed Non-
Share Sharg option equity Merger revaluation  Exchange  Statutory  Retained final controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  reserves reserve Teserve resrve reserve profits — dividend Total  interests equity
EEnE-
BhE TARZE HERRE Rik
ks ROEE B EERE AHEE EfHE EXBE  iEBE  REEF  RERS Bt FERER  BREE
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn TR fRr  TEr  TEx TEn TR fRr  TEn  TER TEn TEr  TEn
Balance as at 1 January 2009 RZESNE-A-ANEsR 11628 447936 16,018 3011 89,936 7,126 67,291 19,508 103,249 - 765,703 89652  8553%
Dividends paid to non-controling shareholders 2 RFR RS - = = = = - = = = = - (2,150) (2.150)
Arising from issue of ordinary shares on ErfEEpEsniaRnEs
exercise of share options (nofe 29) (Kz2) 6 1493 (290) - - - - - - - 1,269 - 1269
66 1493 (290) - - - - - - - 1,269 (2,150) (881)
Profit for the year FREA - = = = - - - - 15,84 - 15,854 (3,892) 12,002
Other comprehensive income At2ERA
Share of revaluation surplus of Eh-ERAADEENZE
an associate's hotel property EfEY - - - - - 5,149 - - - = 5,149 - 5149
Total comprehensive income for the year FREANAER - - - - - 5149 - - 15,854 - 21,003 (385 17,151
Transfer £l = = = = = - - 1317 (723) = o4 (594) =
Share of an associate’s statutory reserve ElE-RBREnmieRE - - - - - - - 3485 (3.485) - - - -
Release upon expiry of vested share options 25 BEREZ 84 - - (7,628) - - - - - 7628 - - - -
Proposed final dividend (nofe 11) RERBRE (Wi1D) = - - - = - - - (4678) 4678 - - -
Balance as at 31 December 2009 RIESAET-A=T-AMER 11694 449409 8,100 3011 89,936 12275 67,291 24310 117,845 4678 788569 83006 871625
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity «continued)

MEEZEHR W

Attributable to owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE-Z—2E+-A=t+—AILER

ARARRERER
Hotel
property,
Convertible plant and
Share notes equipment Proposed Non-
Share Share option equity Merger  revaluation ~ Exchange  Statutory  Retained final controlling Total
capital  premium  reserves  resemves reserve reserve Teserve Teserve profits — dividend Total  interests equity
BENE
BhE TRRZE HERR® Rk
ks RHEE B EEBE AHEE EREE  EXBE  iEHE  REEF RERS @it FERER ERlE
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEr TR TEn TEn TER TEr  TEr  TEn TEn TER
Balance as at 1 January 2010 RZF-35-f-ANER 11694 449429 8,100 301 89,936 12,215 67,291 24310 117,845 4678 788,569 83,056 871,625
Dividends paid to non-controling shareholder 2 i FERBRARS - - - - - - - - - - - (384) (384)
Dividends relating 2009 final dividend BE-TENEREREARSE - - - - - - - - - (4,678) (4,678) - (4,678)
Fair value acjustment on infial recognition of - $i3EERRRE S & RETE:
Joans from non-controlling shareholders ETDLEERR - - - - - - - - - - - 4513 4513
Issue of shares for the: acquisiton of FHERELBR
leasehold land and buildings (note 28) EFRIRG (H0) 1,092 31,908 - - = = - - - - 39000 - 39000
Capital reduction of a subsidiary —BHBADEREE - - - - - - - - - - - (1965)  (19,656)
1,092 37,908 - - - - - = = (4,678) 34,322 (15,467) 18,855
Proftfor the year FERF - - - - - - - - 18,061 - 18,061 8732 26,793
Other comprehensive income Ap2ELA
Exchange gain on translation of financil RERNEHOEHRR
statements of forelgn operations HERNE - - - - - - 18,007 - - - 18,007 6,438 24,445
Share of exchange gain on translafion of ElRE-BRERANTERE
financial statements of an associate HERNE - - - - - - 3,041 - - - 3041 - 3,041
Share of revaluation surplus of an associate’s 5 —EBERTEENE
hotel property EffR% - - - - - 4,536 - - - - 4,536 - 4536
Total compreensive income for the year FERAUALE - - - - - 4536 21,048 - 18,061 - 43,645 15,170 58,815
Transfer B - - - - - - - 2,082 (2,082) - - - -
Share of an associate’s stafutory reserve El-RBENmieEE - - - - - - - 1,781 (1,781) - - - -
Release upon expiry of vested shares options & B B2 k84 - - (6,132) - - - - - 6,132 - - - -
Proposed final dividend (nofe 11) RiFERS () - - - - - - - - (6,393) 6,393 = - -
Balance as at 31 December 2010 R-E-SE1T-A=t-RHEH 1278 487,331 1,968 3,011 89,936 16,811 88,339 2173 131,782 6,393 866,536 82,759 949,295
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R E Lk

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_Z-ZF+_A=+—BLEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

The address of the Company’s registered office and principal place of
business are Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands and Room 2301, 23/F, Fortis
Tower, 77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16(a) to the
financial statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010 were
approved for issue by the board of directors on 16 March 2011.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2010

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
Amendments to HKAS 39 Eligible Hedged Items
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Group Cash-settled

Share-based Payment Transactions

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause

HK Interpretation 5

Except as explained below, the adoption of these new and revised
standards and interpretations has no significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) — Business Combinations

The revised standard introduced major changes to the accounting
requirements for business combinations. It retains the major
features of the purchase method of accounting, now referred to as
the acquisition method. The most significant changes in the
revised standard are as follows:

- Acquisition-related costs of the combination are recorded
as an expense in the consolidated income statement.
Previously, these costs would have been accounted for as
part of the cost of the acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R E Lk

2.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

(a)

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2010
(Cont’d)

HKFRS 3 (Revised) — Business Combinations (Cont’d)

- The assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally
measured at their acquisition date fair value under the
revised standard provides an exception and specific
measurement rules.

- Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at
the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration
arrangement gives rise to a financial liability, any
subsequent changes are generally recognised in profit or
loss. Previously, contingent consideration was recognised
at the acquisition date only if its payment was probable.

The revised standard has been applied prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 January 2010. The Group did not have business combination
occurred in the current year and therefore the adoption of the
revised standard did not have any impact on the current year’s
results and financial position.

HKAS 27 (Revised) — Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) required that the HKAS 27
(Revised) is adopted at the same time. The revised standard
introduced changes to the accounting requirements for
transactions with non-controlling (formerly known as “minority”)
interests and the loss of control of a subsidiary. Similar to HKFRS
3 (Revised), the adoption of the revised standard is applied
prospectively. The Group did not have transactions with non-
controlling interests in the current year and did not dispose of any
of its equity interests in its subsidiaries. Therefore, the adoption of
the revised standard did not have any impact on the current year’s
results and financial position.

HK Interpretation 5 — Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

The Interpretation is a clarification of an existing standard, HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements. It sets out the conclusion
reached by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants that a term loan which contains a clause which gives
the lender the unconditional right to demand repayment at any
time shall be classified as a current liability in accordance with
paragraph 69(d) of HKAS 1 irrespective of the probability that the
lender will invoke the clause without cause.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

(a)

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January 2010
(Cont'd)

HK Interpretation 5 — Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (Cont'd)

In order to comply with the requirements of HK Interpretation 5,
the Group has changed its accounting policy on the classification
of term loans that contain a repayment on demand clause. Under
the new policy, term loans with clauses which give the lender the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time are classified as
current liabilities in the statement of financial position. Previously
such term loans were classified in accordance with the agreed
repayment schedule unless the Group had breached any of the
loan covenants set out in the agreement as of the end of the
reporting period or otherwise had reason to believe that the lender
would invoke its rights under the immediate repayment clause
within the foreseeable future.

The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively by re-
presenting the opening balances as at 1 January 2009, with
consequential reclassification adjustments to comparatives for the
year ended 31 December 2009. The reclassification has had no
effect on reported profit or loss, total comprehensive income or
equity for any period presented.

Effect of adoption of HK Interpretation 5 on the consolidated
statement of financial position is as follows:
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Current liabilities REAE

Borrowings B 35,242 21,327 23,569
Non-current liabilities FREBERE

Borrowings B8 (35,242) (21,327) (23,569)

As a result of the above retrospective reclassification, an additional
consolidated statement of financial position is presented in
accordance with HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
Details of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 26.

MR LB REN DR AEBERERES
FHEAIE IR IERR 2T 25 BINOERA
BTSN o B AR EE SRR B
26 °

FERRERAT —T-TEER 45



Notes to the Financial Statements
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Contd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have heen issued but are not yet
effective

The following new and revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010%3

Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues!

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) -
Interpretation 14

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement?

HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments?
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures®
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure - Transfers of Financial Assets*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax - Recovery of Underlying Assets®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definition of related
parties. It also provides for a partial exemption of related party
disclosure to government-related entities for transactions with the
same government or entities that are controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the same government.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the derecognition
disclosure requirements for transfer transactions of financial
assets and allow users of financial statements to better understand
the possible effects of any risks that may remain with the entity on
transferred assets. The amendments also require additional
disclosures if a disproportionate amount of transfer transactions
are undertaken around the end of a reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Cont'd)

(b)

New and revised HKFRSs that have heen issued but are not yet
effective (Cont'd)

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial
assets measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending on
the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
Fair value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or loss except
for those non-trade equity investments, which the entity will have
a choice to recognise the gains and losses in other comprehensive
income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39,
except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of that liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities.

The amendments to HKAS 12 introduce a rebuttable presumption
that an investment property is recovered entirely through sale.
This presumption is rebutted if the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through sale.
The amendments will be applied retrospectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new and revised HKFRSs and the
directors so far concluded that the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to
as the “HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except for the investment properties, hotel properties
and certain financial assets and liabilities, which are measured at
fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

Business combination from 1 January 2010

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at
the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date
fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group
may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the
non-controlling interest either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related
costs incurred are expensed.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments
to consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All
other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and the non-controlling
interest are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(a)

Business combination and basis of consolidation (Cont'd)
Business combination from 1 January 2010 (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interest is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus
the non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Business combination prior to 1 January 2010

On acquisition, the assets and liabilities of the relevant
subsidiaries are measured at their fair values at the date of
acquisition. The interest of non-controlling shareholders is stated
at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and
liabilities recognised.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of
debt or equity securities, that the Group incurred in connected
with business combinations were capitalised as part of the cost of
the acquisition.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the non-controlling
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the group’s
interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment to cover
the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the
group’s interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-
controlling interests as transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals to non-controlling interests result in gains and
losses for the Group are recognised profit or loss. Purchases from
non-controlling interests result in goodwill, being the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying amount of net assets of the subsidiary.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(b)

(c)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to control the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity.

In consolidated financial statements, acquisition of subsidiaries
(other than those under common control) is accounted for by
applying the acquisition method. This involves the estimation of
fair value of all identifiable assets and liabilities, including
contingent liabilities of the subsidiary, at the acquisition date,
regardless of whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On initial
recognition, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair
values, which are also used as the bases for subsequent
measurement in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the subsidiary is
held for sale or included in a disposal group. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable at the end of the reporting
period. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss.

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group is able to exert
significant influence, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of voting rights but which are neither
subsidiaries nor investment in a joint venture.

In consolidated financial statements, investment in associates is
initially recognised at cost and subsequently accounted for using
the equity method. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and is
assessed for impairment as part of the investment. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed
and equity instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
determination of the Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.

For the year ended 31 December 2010
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(c)

Associates (Cont’d)

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in the associate is
carried at cost and adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets less any identified
impairment loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The profit or
loss for the period includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the associates for the year,
including any impairment loss on the investment in associates
recognised for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Where unrealised losses on assets sales between
the Group and its associates are reversed on equity accounting,
the underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Where the associate uses accounting policies other
than those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made, where necessary, to
conform the associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group
when the associate’s financial statements are used by the Group
in applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

After the application of equity method, the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise an additional impairment loss
on the Group’s investment in its associates. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group determines whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If
such indications are identified, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) of
the associate and its carrying amount. In determining the value in
use of the investment, the Group estimates its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the associate, including cash flows arising from the operations
of the associate and the proceeds on ultimate disposal of the
investment.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the end of the
reporting period retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined and are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency, have
been converted into Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expenses have been
converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
Property, plant and equipment
(i) Depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of

property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:
Land and buildings 2% - 5%
Leasehold improvements 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Operating and office equipment 5% - 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Hotel properties Period of the lease terms
The assets’ depreciation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of the
reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

(i)

Measurement bases

Property, plant and equipment, other than hotel properties,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to the working condition and location for
its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Hotel properties held by an associate of the Group are
stated at valuation determined by external professional
valuers less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Changes in the value of hotel properties are dealt with as
movements in the hotel property, plant and equipment
revaluation reserve. If the balance of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, the excess of the deficit is
charged to the profit or loss.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss. Any revaluation surplus remaining in equity is
transferred to retained profits on the disposal of hotel
properties and certain buildings that have been transferred
as investment properties.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being constructed
or developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the interest
is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it
was held under a finance lease.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

()

(g)

(h)

Investment properties (Cont’d)

On initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair value,
unless it is still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Fair value is determined by external
professional valuers, with sufficient experience with respect to
both the location and the nature of the investment property. The
carrying amounts recognised at the end of the reporting period
reflect the prevailing market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value or the
sale of an investment property are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests over the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. The consideration
transferred is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 4(s)).

Any excess of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of gain or loss on disposal.

Properties held under development

Properties held under development for future sale are included in
current assets and comprise land held under operating lease (note
4(0)) and aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies,
wages, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying assets and other
expenses (“Development costs”). Development costs are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Other expenses included
(i) those costs that are incurred in bringing the properties held
under development to their present location and condition and (ii)
a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that are incurred on
development of properties. Fixed overheads are indirect costs
which remain relatively constant regardless of the size or volume
of the development.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs of completion and
estimated selling expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2010
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(i)

()]

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In the case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated selling
expenses.

The cost of properties held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the properties to their present location and condition.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates are set below.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: (i)
loans and receivables and (ii) available-for-sale financial assets.

Management determines the classification of the financial assets
at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the end of the
reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At the end of the reporting period, financial assets are reviewed to
assess whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any
such evidence exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the financial asset.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(j) Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify for
inclusion in any of the other categories of financial assets
are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gain or loss arising from a change
in the fair value excluding any dividend and interest income
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve in equity, except for impairment
losses (see the policy below) and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary assets, until the financial asset is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group designated the shareholder’s loan relating to an
unlisted investment as available-for-sale financial asset as
the Group intends to capitalise the shareholder’s loan as
further investment in this investment.

Available-for-sale investments in equity securities that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery
of such unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, financial assets are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial asset
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

It becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

Significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2010
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

()]

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets include
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from the group of financial assets.
Such observable data includes but not limited to adverse changes
in the payment status of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in
the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured and
recognised as follows:

(@)

(i)

Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset exceeding what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised at the
date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal
is recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale
financial asset has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, an
amount is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment loss. That amount is measured as
the difference between the asset’s acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale and stated at fair value are
not recognised in the profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised in other comprehensive
income. Impairment losses in respect of debt securities are
reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversal of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

()]

(k)

(1

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

(iii)

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Financial assets other than accounts and other receivables
that are stated at amortised cost, impairment losses are
written off against the corresponding assets directly. Where
the recovery of accounts and other receivables is
considered doubtful but not remote, the impairment losses
for doubtful receivables are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery of
accounts and other receivables is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against accounts and
other receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of available for sale equity securities and unquoted
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period. Consequently, if the fair value of an
available for sale equity security increases in the remainder
of an annual period, or in a subsequent period, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories comprise consumable stores for own consumption

which are stated at cost. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and in hand

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For
the purpose of the statement of cash flows presentation, cash and

cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(m)

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, accounts and
other payables, accruals, deposits received and convertible notes.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All interest
related charges are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 4(u)).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligations under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at
the option of the holder, where the number of shares that would
be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both
financial liability and equity components are classified separately
into respective liability and equity components on initial
recognition. On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market interest rate
for similar non-convertible debts. The difference between the
proceeds of the issue of the convertible notes and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing the call option
for conversion of the notes into equity, is included in equity as
convertible notes equity reserves.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component will
remain in equity until conversion or redemption of the notes.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Financial liabilities (Cont'd)
Convertible notes (Cont'd)

When the notes are converted, the convertible notes equity
reserves and the carrying value of the liability component at the
time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the notes are
redeemed, the convertible notes equity reserves are released
directly to retained profits.

Accounts and other payables, accruals and deposits received

Accounts and other payables, accruals and deposits received are
recognised initially at their fair values and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
(or guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the
guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
financial guarantee contracts. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in the profit or
loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantee issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised if and when it becomes probable that
the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the current carrying amount, i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(0) Leases (Contd)

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

Leasehold interest in land is up-front payments to acquire
the land use rights. The payments are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the up-front payments over the lease terms.

Leasehold interest in land included in properties held under
development and properties held for sale, of which the
amortisation of prepaid land lease is capitalised as part of
the building costs during the development period but
charged to the profit or loss for completed properties.

Properties leased out under operating leases are included
in investment properties in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The recognition of rental income is set
out in note 4(r).

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the time pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are measured and
presented according to the nature of the assets. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the time pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.
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R E Lk

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(p)

(q)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the group are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the allocation
of purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired in a
business combination. They are initially measured at fair value at
the date of acquisition and subsequently measured at the higher
of the amount that would be recognised in a comparable provision
as described above and the amount initially recognised less any
accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

Probable inflows of economic benefits to the Group that do not yet
meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent
assets.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issue of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefits) to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(r)

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue arising from sale of properties held for sale is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties held for sale have been transferred to the purchasers
and the Group retains neither continuing involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over properties held for sale. The transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership is evidenced by the passing of possession of properties
to the purchaser when the property hand-over confirmation is
executed by the Group and the purchaser. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to this stage and pre-
sale are included in current liabilities and are not recognised as
revenue.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in
equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the
lease terms. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the period in which
they are earned.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment, investments in
subsidiaries and interests in associates are subject to impairment
testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they are impaired. All other
assets are tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessment of time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflow independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies
of the related business combination and represent the lowest level
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(s)

(t)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially to the carrying
amount of goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro
rata to the other assets in the cash generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the reporting
period to which the interim period relates.

Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a fixed percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
as employees render services during the year. The Group’s
obligation under these schemes is limited to the fixed
percentage contributions payable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(t) Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(i)

(iif)

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Employee share-based payment compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of
any share-based compensation are measured at fair values.
These are indirectly determined by reference to the share
options awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant date
and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as an expense
in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting conditions
apply, or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the equity instruments granted vest immediately
unless the compensation qualifies for recognition as asset,
with a corresponding increase in the share option reserves
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of equity
instruments that are expected to vest. Estimates are
subsequently revised, if there is any indication that the
number of equity instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserves will
be transferred to share premium. After vesting date, when
the vested share options are later forfeited or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserves will be transferred to
retained profits.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction or
production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying
asset when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are being
undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

The Group capitalises borrowing costs for all eligible assets where
construction was commenced on or after 1 January 2009. The
Group continues to expense borrowing costs relating to
construction projects that commenced prior to 1 January 2009.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the end of the
reporting period. They are calculated according to the tax rates
and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense
in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, tax
losses available to be carried forward as well as other unused tax
credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(v)

(w)

Accounting for income taxes (Cont'd)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the
asset realised, provided they are enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in equity if
they relate to items that are charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if,
and only if:

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b)  intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
in net if, and only if:

(a) the entity has a legally enforcement right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components. The
business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(w)

Segment reporting (Cont'd)
The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

Property development: Property development and sale of

properties held for sale

Property investment
and leasing:

Property leasing and sale of
investment properties

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each
of these product and service lines requires different resources as
well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers are
carried out at arm length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segment
results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

- employee share-based payment expense;

- share of results of associates accounted for using the equity
method;

- gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial asset;
- income tax expense; and

- corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of the operating
segment.

Segment assets include all assets but exclude goodwill, interests
in associates and available-for-sale financial asset. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not allocated to a segment,
which primarily applies to the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities information is not reported or used by the
Group’s executive directors.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2010
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)

(x)  Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member of
such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to in
(i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Cont'd)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

Estimated fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group were stated at fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 4(f). The fair value of the investment properties are
determined by a firm of independently qualified
professional surveyors and the fair value of investment
properties as at the end of the reporting period are set out
in note 15. Such valuations were based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results.

In making the judgement, consideration has been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period and appropriate
capitalisation rates. These estimates are regularly
compared to actual market data and actual transactions
entered into by the Group.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 4(s). The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
unit have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates. Details of the assumptions used are set out in
note 13.

Net realisable value of properties held for sale and
properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value of
completed properties held for sale by using prevailing
market data such as most recent sale transactions and
market survey reports available from independent qualified
professional surveyors, and internal estimates of costs
based on quotes by suppliers.

Management’s assessment of net realisable value of
properties held under development requires the estimates
of future cash flows to be derived from these properties.
These estimates requires judgement as to the anticipated
sale prices by reference to recent sales transactions in
nearby locations, rate of new property sales, marketing
costs (including price discounts required to stimulate sales)
and the expected costs to completion of properties, the
legal and regulatory framework and general market
conditions.

5.

For the year ended 31 December 2010
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Cont'd)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (Cont’d)

(iv)

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group’s management assesses the collectability of
accounts receivable. This estimate is based on the credit
history of the Group’s customers and the current market
condition.

Management reassesses the impairment provision at the
end of the reporting period.

(b)  Critical judgements in applying the entity’s accounting policies

(i)

(i)

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from sale of properties
held for sale during the year as disclosed in note 7. The
assessment of when an entity has transferred the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to a buyer requires
examination of the circumstances of the transaction. In
most cases, the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
coincides with the transfer of the legal title or the passing of
possession to the buyer. The Group believes that its
recognition basis of sales as set out in note 4(r) is
appropriate and is in line with the current practice adopted
in the PRC.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income tax in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision of tax and the timing of payment of
the related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in periods in which such determination are
made.

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax (“LAT”) in the
PRC. However, the implementation and settlement of this
tax varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the
PRC, and the Group has not finalised for certain its LAT
calculation and payments with any local tax authorities in
the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount on the appreciation of land value
and its related LAT. The Group recognised LAT based on
management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the tax rules.

During the year, the Group incurred LAT of approximately
HK$2,091,000 (2009: HK$749,000) which was charged to
the consolidated income statement as income tax expense.
The directors considered the amount charged to the
consolidated income statement to be adequate as this is
calculated according to the method which is in compliance
with the existing rules and interpretation of LAT.
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7REHR

EEE-RIBEASE IE’]HEI‘P‘ (BN E iR 4t Hy

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the

Group’s service lines, which represents the main products and services EE&%&HE%) LAERHEEDE - ZFEIETJE

provided by the Group. The Group has identified the following reportable ERHHE o

segments.

Property development Property development and sale of YIEER MEFRERHEFEME
properties held for sale

Property investment and leasing Property leasing and sale of MERERBE MEBRERTEEREY

investment properties

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of
these product and service lines requires different resources as well as
marketing approaches.

HRZEERIRBEEBFETRER R TS HEE
% At B REESEIRERE -

For the year ended 31 December 2010, there have been no changes HEZZ T+ A=1+—HILFE EBTZE
from prior years in the measurement methods used to determine "*ﬁ&ziﬁz’\*@% ST AMETE R ERBEFE
operating segments and reported segment profit or loss. FriE &R o

DEREERERMENE -

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

2010
—E-ZF
Property
Property investment
development and leasing Elimination Total
MERE
MERRE rkHEE ESf ] @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FERT FET FHET
Revenue: Was -
From external customers REINARF 364,737 10,789 = 375,526
Inter-segment revenue DB S = 117 (117) -
Total segment revenue g 364,737 10,906 117) 375,526
Reportable segment profit A2/ ERF 36,927 18,320 - 55,247
Bank interest income RITH B HA 2,443 103 = 2,546
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BE REEITE
equipment (293) (2,775) - (3,068)
Gain on disposal of investment LEREMENKE
properties - 6,307 - 6,307
Impairment loss on other receivables H b e R IE R (B B 18 - (554) - (554)
Fair value adjustments on investment HEMEN AR BERAE
properties - 18,883 - 18,883
Finance costs =N 14,759 2,427 = 17,186
Reportable segment assets NE2ERAPEEE 1,050,884 356,709 - 1,407,493
Additions to non-current segment FRIERBOBEER
assets during the year 1,990 583 - 2,573
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. TEER #®
2009
—ZEENF
Property
Property investment
development and leasing Elimination Total
I EX g
YR &N Bk s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&ET T T FET
Revenue: e
From external customers REINAEF 245,163 13,702 = 258,865
Inter-segment revenue 2R WS - 117 (117) =
Total segment revenue @5 W 245,163 13,819 (117) 258,865
Reportable segment profit AIE2{HBAF] 383 2,060 = 2,443
Bank interest income RITHREMA 761 80 - 841
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB REENE
equipment (129) (2,781) = (2,910)
Loss on disposal of investment PEREYENERE
properties - (1,754) - (1,754)
Fair value adjustments on investment BEMENDREEAE
properties - 7,360 - 7,360
Finance costs BhE AR (16,335) (3,283) - (19,618)
Reportable segment assets AERDBEE 966,957 360,186 = 1,327,143
Additions to non-current segment FRIERBDOBEERE
assets during the year 73 872 - 945

The total presented for the Group’s operating segments reconcile to the
Group's key financial figures as presented in the financial statements as

WMEATEHRAE - REBNEES BAEERS
B =2 M BBURHRMT -

follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FET
Total segment profit 1B nfa R 55,247 2,443
Share of results of associates il N 13,424 6,090
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial asset & A] fit H & 8 & @t & & 1 W 22 = 32,869
Corporate overheads NREERAY (25,494) (24,139)
Other unallocated income H bR D EUA 995 872
Profit before income tax R P 45 %54 Al 22 7] 44,172 18,135
Reportable segment assets AERDBEE 1,407,593 1,327,143
Goodwill (5SS 37,048 37,048
Interests in associates BN O e 124,757 110,947
Corporate assets RAEE 89,677 67,660
Total assets BEE 1,659,075 1,542,798
FEERERAT —E-TEER 73
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE_ZT-ZF+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 6. DREER (F
No geographical information is presented as the operations, major HRAEENER  TEXFREERZMRF
customers and assets of the Group are substantially located in the PRC. C IR AR 2 5 i 5 ZBE R o
The Group has a large number of customers, and there was no significant AEBEFEERERF BE_Z—ZTFR-_ZTTAh
revenue derived from specific external customers for the years ended 31 F+ A=t HALFEYEREFEIRZTFLH
December 2010 and 2009. BAYE o
7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 7. WEREMEKA
Revenue, which includes the Group’s turnover and other income RAFEBRAN R (BIEAEENEER) REMAW
recognised during the year are as follows: IWAZFEAT -
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Revenue Wz
Turnover =3
Proceeds from sale of properties held for sale HERFEMEMBRIE 364,737 245,163
Rental income A WA 10,789 13,702
375,526 258,865
Other income Hplg A
Interest income ) B WA 2,583 857
Exchange gain, net bE 5 W e 58 576 111
Others Hih 1,806 1,196
4,965 2,164
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. ®MEMAX
2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T
Interest charges on borrowings which are repayable ZBRAFERNEENEENEER :

within five years:

Bank loans RITEN 12,977 10,585

Bank overdrafts RITHEZ - 58

Other loans HEMER 74 647

Imputed interest expense on loans from FEVEAR AR 3R & SR FE AT

non-controlling shareholders FERAE 4,450 7,208
17,501 18,493
Interest charges on borrowings which are repayable ZBRAFEEEENEENEER :

after five years:

Bank loans RITEN 3,073 3,997
Interest charge on convertible notes AR ERA A EEH 4,480 4,480
Total interest expense on financial liabilities W IR A 2 BERIBZYIER

not at fair value through profit or loss CRABMNERAS AR 25,054 26,970
Less: Amount capitalised in properties held under B BRBERPWEELRN

development * BEEr (6,438) (718)
18,616 26,252
o The finance costs have been capitalised at a rate of 5.81% (2009: 5.76%) * BERADIRENKS81% (ZZZTNE : 5.76%) &
per annum. Ak o
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HE-_T-—ZF+-_A=+—HItFE
8. FINANCE COSTS (cont’d) 8. RMERA &)
The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including term BEASMIRBITEENRERS  BEREER
loans which contain a repayment on demand clause, in accordance with HEAE R EEIEER Hﬁ/@%&gﬁiféﬁ FSN
the agreed scheduled repayments dates set out in the loan agreements. HNEHEX HE_T—ZTFER_ZTTNF+_A
For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009, the interest on bank =+—HIEFE  RERERKEZEGINIRTEE
borrowings which contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to & 825 5l 1,355,000/ 7T & 1,939,000/8 7T °
HK$1,355,000 and HK$1,939,000 respectively.
9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRFTBHATEF
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH& T
Profit before income tax is arrived at after KR P51 BT & A TS
charging/(crediting): Lk GEA) T3 &8 -
Cost of properties held for sale recognised as EREASTNEEMERSE
expense 295,300 212,313
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BEREZEITE 4,066 4,189
Less: amount capitalised in properties held under B BAEBETYEEARNEE
development (34) (108)
4,032 4,081
Outgoings in respect of investment properties that BERAFEELERSBA
generated rental income during the year ZIEBEYENRX 2,580 3,618
Operating lease charges in respect of land and BT HREFHNLCEHEERR
buildings 1,271 1,056
Auditor’s remuneration 1% E AN B & 1,286 1,305
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments BIKRAN(BEESME (H1:#330)
(note 33(a)) and retirement benefits cost KRR ERN ) 32,296 29,076
Less: amount capitalised in properties held B BRBRERYEERNNEE
under development (9,858) (11,252)
22,438 17,824
Amount recognised as expense for retirement benefit R &R KEF £ H X &K EE
costs 1,024 2,189
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  BERXENEE 40 417
Impairment loss on other receivables E 8 W R IE R E BT 1R 1,055 -
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREWEN (W) B8 (6,307) 1,754
Exchange gain, net & H s F 58 (576) (111)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial asset & 7]t H & #) & g & & ) W 2k - (32,869)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTBBiMX
The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated income statement FEWERANAERAZ &5
represents:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k23 FExT FHT
Current tax — the PRC BIEAREIE — FE
— Corporate income tax — EMEH (a) 10,258 5,257
— LAT — T IRER (b) 2,091 749
12,349 6,006
Deferred taxation (note 18) EERIE (M:E18) 5,030 127
17,379 6,133
Notes: et -
(@)  The PRC corporate income tax is computed according to relevant laws and (@) HEICEMRGHILBEREBBERERAE - &
regulations in the PRC. The applicable income tax rate was 25% for the E-T-TER-TFTNFTA=+—HILFE
years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009. B E AR R A25% °
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as the Group had no AR AEERNAFEE W EE AT ERERF (=
estimated assessable profits for the year (2009: Nil). TNE E) LW ERERE RS R
o
(b)  Under the Provisional Rules on LAT Implementation Rules of the PRC (by WRER—ANAE—A-+LBEHOF R LML
implemented on 27 January 1995, all gains from the sales or transfer of ERETIEGIERAMA - FTEEEEREERTP
land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities in the PRC are E’]iiﬁgf;‘iﬁﬁﬁé BFLABEREMESHYE 15
subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the AR T IRET - BRI EEE (AN E W
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less FRS RIBR AT HUR S )+ B2 38 T ub 165 FR AR A AR R P
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property EMEZRRAL) UNBREXRTH - H30%ZE60%T
development expenditures. £
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit NEZREREZA Al ERAIRFTISBIATA
before income tax per the consolidated income statement as follows: FERMT -
2010 2009
—E-EF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Profit before income tax Rk BT 15 5 AT &2 44,172 18,135
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated REBHRWEERNEROTETERME
at the rates applicable in the tax jurisdiction T Al & A &9 5 18
concerned 12,167 3,801
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A %R?tﬂ?iﬁ’ﬁﬂf%?&é 10,971 7,862
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue B AR S BB 1S R & (10,620) (9,516)
Tax effect of temporary difference arising from RORBMENROEREEZEMES
withholding tax for undistributed profits MR 1,096 957
LAT charge TR ER S T 2,091 749
Others HAfty 1,674 2,280
Income tax expense for the year REEMEHBEX 17,379 6,133
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11.

12.
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DIVIDENDS 11. K&
Dividends attributable to the year: FRNEMLBKRE :
2010 2009
—z-=25 —EEhE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FH& T
Proposed 2010 final dividend of 0.5 HK cents Bk —E—ZTFREIR B FRE BAR0.5EL
(2009: 0.4 HK cents) per ordinary share (ZETNE : 0.481L) 6,393 4678

The final dividend proposed after the years ended 31 December 2010
and 2009 had not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period, but reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for
the year.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$18,061,000
(2009: HK$15,854,000) and on weighted average of 1,205,341,055
(2009: 1,165,791,312) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

In the calculation of the diluted earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010, the potential
shares arising from the conversion of the Company’s convertible notes
would increase the earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company and was not taken into account as they had an anti-dilutive
effect. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$18,061,000 and on weighted average of
1,207,498,688 ordinary shares outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2010, being the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,205,341,055 used in basic earnings per share calculation
adjusted for the effect of share options issued of 2,157,633.

In the calculation of the diluted earnings per share attributable to owners
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009, the potential
shares arising from the conversion of the Company’s convertible notes
would increase the earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company and was not taken into account as they had an anti-dilutive
effect. Therefore, the diluted earnings per share attributable to owners of
the Company is based on the profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$15,854,000 and on weighted average of
1,167,811,900 ordinary shares outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2009, being the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,165,791,312 used in basic earnings per share calculation
adjusted for the effect of share options issued of 2,020,588.

12.

BE_T-TER-FTFNFTA=F+—HILHF
FEMBIKRBR L RRBERRERRAE
BEIEAXFENRE RN DIK -

BRER

FREABADEARADRREMERMND
18,061,000 7t (ZEE L4 © 15,854,000 7T) K&
FRNBETEBRRL 205,341,055 (ZEZTNF
1,165,791,312/%) ey hntg F 9 Gt H o

HEBE_ZE-EE+_A=+—HILEENEARD
AIREREERETAETE  HBRAQRHRRKRE
BEENBERNDSEMARRRREEETRA
M -EEREEBRMARBEYE MU ETER
Ao - ARABREELTREERFIZARQF]
M (B F#18,061,0008 TREE —T—T4F
+ - A=+—HLEFEEETEERK], 207,498,688
RRE INEEE Bt - BIEHAEEE 3172,157,633(3
BRENTZE  ARITESREARFALRER
1,205,341,0550% &9 hNHE F 525 -

HEBEETNAFT_A=T—HILEFENERR
AIRREGSRESRMNE - LIRAQE I BRARE
BEANEERNDSENARRBRREESRA
Mo ERFERMARBIEZE  BUEAEE
A e Bt - AR BRRENS G REER MR AR E
& PR FE (5 22 4149 15,854,0008 T R BLZE — B ENF
T RA=+—HIEFEEETEMARL 167,811,900
R ey iR F IO B E - BIAE B 2 3172,020,588(70
BRENZE RARAESRERRNNEBK
1,165,791, 312k My N4 F 15 24 -
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HE-_Z-—ZF+_A=+—HLLFE

13. GOODWILL 13. B8
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-FF —TENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Ex FHT
Gross amount k-]
Balance as at 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRt+=-—A=+—H#&#&% 37,048 37,048
The goodwill as at 31 December 2010 comprises mainly goodwill arising RZE—ZTF+_A=+—HHNBEETEZERRE
from the acquisition of New Heritage Investments Limited of R-ZTRFREFECEBRAREENEELY
approximately HK$33,672,000 in 2005. 33,672,000/ 7T ©
The recoverable amount for the cash-generating units, the underlying BRAFHECEARARIBSELEMN  BEEERY
hotel and property operations, in relation to New Heritage Investments EEBNARESBENIREREBFEAETE - AR
Limited was determined based on value-in-use calculations, covering a Hﬁuiiﬁﬂﬂﬁloiﬁﬂ?ﬁkkﬁ (F£*) LAB.40% (Z T 4 ¢
detailed 10-year budget plan (note*) discounted at a rate of 6.40% 5.94%) Fri K&+ &
(2009: 5.94%).
& The value-in-use calculations use cash flow projections based on a five- * FRBENEAFERANEERcELBNNASFE
year projection of the relevant cash-generating unit with a growth rate of RHARENBEREEA @ WIRAFANERE
9.5% (2009: 9.0%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period are 9.5% (ZEZNGF : 9%) 51 H - AFHFENERERS
extrapolated assuming a nil growth rate. MERZTEEERNERRET -
The management’s key assumptions for the Group have been EREHASENTIERENIBEERBTIREKR
determined based on past performance and their expectations for the EIEEHMSERNBERET - FIFEAINET
market development. The weighted average growth rate used is 18 K 2R B8 fh B 1 (B ) AR EE AR (B 45 BUIE R R AR
consistent with the growth rate of Gross Domestic Products Index in the FE o FTE AR ITER E B AT AT R T EAHRER &
PRC. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating EEBEMAANEERRE
to the relevant cash-generating unit.
Management also believes that any reasonably possible change in the EREMTEE  ETEBRIJPEMERATKE S EL
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not CEAHEH I SENRERMEBRREITKE ¢
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount. 58 o
Apart from the considerations described above in determining the value BRElErHReELEMFREENZSEERIN -
in use of the cash-generating units, the management is not currently ERE BN AR E A se S B AR H
aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate changes in FTAEZ2/\ENIBMR -
their key assumptions.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 14. V¥ BERRKRE-XT£E
Operating
Land and Leasehold Motor and office Furniture
buildings  improvements vehicles equipment and fixtures Total
EER
tipEF HEWEELEES RE OBAERE  BAREE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THT TET TET
At 1 January 2009 RZZETNF—A—A
Cost KA 20,830 9,626 2,653 7,500 2,846 43,455
Accumulated depreciation BitiE (2,923) (3,482) (1,877) (4,412) (1,096) (13,790)
Net book amount EEFE 17,907 6,144 776 3,088 1,750 29,665
Year ended 31 December 2009 HZE-_ZTTNF+-_A=+—H
HEE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 17,907 6,144 776 3,088 1,750 29,665
Additions NE - 500 73 142 313 1,028
Disposals HE - (177) (93) (94) (136) (500)
Depreciation nE (926) (1,767) (221) (741) (534) (4,189)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 16,981 4,700 535 2,395 1,393 26,004
At 31 December 2009 and R-ZBhE+=-A=1+—-8H
1 January 2010 k=2-Z%-5-H
Cost A 20,830 9,901 2,133 7,436 2,884 43,184
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE (3,849) (5,201) (1,598) (5,041) (1,491) (17,180)
Net book amount IREFE 16,981 4,700 589 2,395 1,393 26,004
Year ended 31 December 2010 HZ_-F—-F&+-A=+—-H
LEE
Opening net book amount FNRMEFE 16,981 4,700 535 2,395 1,393 26,004
Additions NE 40,160 427 1,920 123 146 42,776
Disposals & - (375) (98) (57) (278) (808)
Depreciation e (1,116) (1,807) (239) (555) (349) (4,066)
Exchange differences EHES 418 76 52 50 20 616
Closing net hook amount FREEFE 56,443 3,021 2,170 1,956 932 64,522
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-ZF5+-A=1+-H
Cost KA 61,533 9,903 3,138 7,168 2,616 84,358
Accumulated depreciation 2EtiE (5,090) (6,882) (968) (5,212) (1,684) (19,836)
Net book amount REFE 56,443 3,021 2,170 1,956 932 64,522
Depreciation expenses have been included in: WERIBEETISE :
2010 2009
—E-TF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Consolidated statement of financial position bRE MR R
— capitalised in properties held under development — — & FFERE Y EER 34 108
Consolidated income statement Re W R
— cost of sales —HEK AR 2,020 287
— administrative expenses — TR X 2,012 3,794
4,066 4,189
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP (Conta)

Net book amount of the Group’s land and buildings shown above

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE_Z-ZF+_A=1+—HLEFE
14. Y% - BERKZE-FKH @)

EXFIREAREE LI TR FERE

comprises:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Ex F&T
Properties in Hong Kong held under FIEENB B
long leases (not less than 50 years) EHAE (NP R504) 39,971 -
Properties outside Hong Kong held under s BB B AN %
long leases (not less than 50 years) REHEE (R R505) 16,472 16,981
56,443 16,981
As at 31 December 2010, certain land and buildings of approximately 5“ —T-TF+_A=+—H ' %39,971,000% T

HK$39,971,000 (2009: Nil) were pledged to secure certain bank loans
granted to the Group (note 26(a)).

-z 771¢ ) Fiiﬂj&&?ﬂiﬁfﬁﬁ A
ERASEERNE TRITER (HFE260@) °

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWZE
Group
AEHE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHIT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHERE 297,781 311,754
Disposals s (37,191) (21,333)
Fair value adjustments NREBEAE 18,883 7,360
Exchange differences ME K = %8 7,291 =
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-A=+—HWEREE 286,764 297,781
As at 31 December 2010, certain investment properties of approximately RZZE—ZFTF+=-A=+—H ' 49146,320,000% T
HK$146,320,000 (2009: HK$141,450,000) were pledged to secure (ZZ TN : 141,450,000% 7T) M5 TIREWMED
certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26(a)). FHEMR  UERASEEENS TRITIER (ME
26(a)) °
Investment properties included leasehold interests in land located in the HEMELRBUNPEN ST - HEHR

PRC with lease terms expiring from 2061 to 2065.

The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2010 was
based on the valuation by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ"), a
firm of independent qualified professional surveyors. Valuations were
based on the properties’ open market value at 31 December 2010. The
properties have been valued by direct comparison method by making
reference to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant
market and where appropriate, by capitalising the net rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance for the
reversionary potential of the respective properties as at the end of the
reporting period.

FETXRAFHER °

ZER—

ZEREMER_ZT-EET_A=+—HNAA
BEDKEBELAEREXSMBERITERA
Al ([JERIT]) FETHHE - MEDREZSEY
ER—_T-TFEF+_HA=tT—BNAFMEERE °
FZEMEDESRNRE A RERBTS LA
BMHERIAERLERETHE  TNEER
ERERERARONES RN FE RS EREY
ERHmE R MNEEYEEROBEE -
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

EFE+_A=+—HILFE

Notes to the Financial Statements

R E Lk

16. B R AR

Investments in subsidiaries (a) NRHEBATNRERE
Company
NN
2010 2009
—E-ZEF —EENF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHT
Unlisted, at cost JELET - EBAAE 112,147 112,147
Capital contribution to a subsidiary m—EHBRRLE 11,700 =
Financial guarantees granted to BT HE A a8 S ER (1 E36)
subsidiaries (note 36) 7,658 7,527
131,505 119,674

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of which is a limited
liability company, as at 31 December 2010 are as follows:

R-E—ZTF+-A=1+—HBTENBAA

(BRERRTE) WFFEWT :

Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ ordinary share capital/ Attributable Principal activities
Company name establishment registered capital equity interest (Place of operations)
KL/ BRTRAR
AR AR Rt EEREEMEL PR AR & TEER (BELEH)
Directly Indirectly
=k %
New Heritage Corporation British Virgin Islands 347 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
Limited* (“BVI") MTREBREMELIET REER
GrELEBRAF)* EEERARAS
New Heritage Development Hong Kong (“HK") 156 shares of HK$1 each - 90% Investment holding
Limited B 156 BREELE T REER
METRERDA
New Heritage Investments Limited HK 6,260,000 shares of HK$10 each - 100% Investment holding
MECEERDA 0 6,260,000 &R EE 10/ T REER
New Heritage (IP) Limited* BVI 1 share of US$1 each - 100% Holding of trademark of
Gz (EF) BRAR)" KEERAKES IRERAEGIET the Group
REASERE
New Heritage Land Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100% Investment holding
MEMEERAA B IREREELET BREER
New Heritage Management HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100% Administration vehicle of
Limited B IRERAEELST the Group (HK)
MEERERDA EEAEETHIE
(&%)
New Heritage Properties Limited HK 1 share of HK$1 each - 100% Investment holding
MEMEERDA B IkBREELET REER
Prosper View Group Limited HK 10,000 shares of HK$1 each - 46% Investment holding
HAEEERAA B 10,000 B R E{E 1% T REER
World Margin Limited HK 800,000 shares of HK$1 each - 100% Treasury vehicle of
HHRERAA e 800,000 B EE LA T the Group (HK)
REREEMME T
(B%)
Healthy Castle Investments BVI 1 share of US$1 each - 100% Investment holding
Limited* EEERARAS IRBREELIET REER
REREHRAR*
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Conta)

16.

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

R B AR NER (4)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Cont’d) (a) MRHEBRATENRE (&)
Place of Issued and fully paid
incorporation/ ordinary share capital/ Attributable Principal activities
Company name establishment registered capital equity interest (Place of operations)
ML BRETRAR
AFER B B EERAEMER TN £ TEEK (BEHY)
Directly Indirectly
HE Gk
Suzhou Garden Villa Development PRC (Note (a)) US$20,550,000 - 86% Properties development
& Management Co., Ltd.* HE (ffiE(a) 20,550,000% 7T and investment (PRC)
BNRESREEREBRERAA MERRERKE (FE)
Suzhou New Heritage GF Limited* PRC (Note (b)) US$26,600,000 - 55% Properties development
BN EER AR B (fzEb) 26,600,000% 7T and investment (PRC)
MEFERRZE (RE)
Suzhou New Heritage Wuzhong PRC (Note (b)) US$3,000,000 - 54% Properties development
Limited* T & (ffiE(b) (2009:US$9,300,000) and investment (PRC)
BN RMEERAR® 3,000,000% 7T MEERKRE (FE)
(ZZF N4 : 9,300,000% 7T)
Suzhou New Heritage WZA PRC (Note (b)) US$5,000,000 - 100% Properties development
Limited* H Bl (5 (b) 5,000,000% 7T and investment (PRC)
BN EMEER AR MEEREKIRE (FE)
New Heritage WJA Limited* PRC (Note (b)) US$33,000,000 - 94% Properties development
RIFEMERRAA" B (ffzE(b) 33,000,000% 7T and investment (PRC)
MERERRE (FE)
i The statutory financial statements of these subsidiaries are not * ZEWBARREE PRI RERBL
audited by BDO Limited. FREEZGFTRMEBMERARERZ -
Notes: Kt -
(a)  This subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign cooperative joint (a) ZMBARIREBFEEEELATINGES
venture under the PRC law. A
(b)  These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign owned (b) ZEWBABRBFBEEZELAINERE
enterprises under the PRC law. i1k
(c) None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end ()  MIEHR - BIENE QB EHITERELEE
of the reporting period. % o
(h)  Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries () FEW (ER)HRELRRE
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZEFETVELR - AR RANREKEEE -
demand.
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Notes to the Financial Statements

R E Lk

17. BEQRIRNER

Group

AEHE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTTNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
K&t FHET FHET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE (a) 124,321 110,479
Amounts due from associates FE WS & A B R IE (b) 436 468
124,757 110,947

Notes: KaE -
(a) Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2010 are as follows: (a) R-E—ZEF+_A=+—HEEQANFEBN
T

Company name

Place of

incorporation/
establishment
and operation

Percentage of
interest held

Principal activities

AR ERB SEMARIL B R H it B FIEERE I FEEK

Beijing Landmark Towers Co., Ltd.* PRC 30.05% Hotel ownership and property investment

EREFEAREERA R A BEBERMERE

China Malls Limited* HK 36% Deregistration**

FEEH AR AR B A

Art Shine Limited* HK 40% Investment holding

BATER PR A F)* B RE R

o The statutory financial statements of these associates are not * ZEME RN RIRNEE IS HRERWARLEEBL
audited by BDO Limited. EREISTMEFMERDAIEZ -

*k

Companies Registry.

On 26 November 2010, the company has been deregistered at the

(b) The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and not repayable within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

(c) Summarised financial information of associates:

* %

RZEBE—FF+—AZ+RB ZRARA
B A1 B H R ©

(b) BERFEAREEM R WIFEREHRE T+
—fERREE -

() HBEXRPHEHLDLNT :

2010 2009

—E-%fF —ETNE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue & 282,258 241,514
Profit after income tax AT BL1E & F 44,660 20,174
Non-current assets ERBEE 494,851 502,240
Current assets mBEE 45,181 35,389
Current liabilities mEAE 93,539 139,868
Non-current liabilities FERBBE 32,864 30,288
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18.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising from temporary
differences are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE-2-2F+-A=T-BLFE
I FE Bt 16

ERNEHEENBEEHREBEEE(BFE) WEBHW
™

Group Company
r5@ N
In respect of
Fair value withholding
adjustments In respect of tax for Convertible Convertible
on investment provision  un-distributed notes equity notes equity
properties for LAT profits reserves Total reserves
REWNE  BEIHE FBTAIRK  TEAREE TRARZE
AEEHAR EBRE BIEAH BERE b BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
Balance as at 1 January 2009 RZEENF-A—-HN&EH (27,982) 1,398 (1,567) (460) (28,111) (460)
Deferred tax (chargedVcredited to ~ WBE KR (MK) /BEMELH B
the profit or loss (note 10) (Hiz£10) (856) (18) 627 120 (127) 120
Balance as at 31 December 2009 ~ R-EEAE+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2010 k=E-S5-A-BH% (28,338) 1,880 (940) (340) (28,238) (340)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to ~ WIB25 (F1%) /&R E'HEURIE
the profit or loss (note 10) (H£10) (4,054) - (1,09) 120 (5,030) 120
Exchange differences EriEH (858) 49 (32) - (841) -
Balance as at 31 December 2010 R-Z-Z5+-A=+-AHEH (33,750) 1,929 (2,068) (220) (34,109) (220)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign-
invested enterprises established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007
pursuant to the Caishui (2008) No. 1 dated 22 February 2008 issued by
the State Tax Bureau of the PRC. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between China and jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and associates established in
the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

RIBFPBEEEMFHE - RP BRI ERER
FIMEEET IR R B ARI0%HM AN - B
TREERGEERR —EEN\F A -+ -HEM
E’JHﬁR(ZOOS)hﬁXFF HRER—ZETNF—HA—
B - R-ZFELF+_A=+—HBMNUE
FEE’JE’&%U ThﬁP!éﬁi*ﬁEﬁf“ﬁ\\&é%ﬁﬁEE’]Ti
R EAIERBHE - RBIFaEERRENTRINK
oo E I A E AR A B ST 6 B A B R B
ERAR_ZENF—A—BUARELENRTIFD
% B B B B AR TR

The following is the analysis of the deferred taxation balances for RUMBHREENTS - BEERBELEHRSTHT ¢
financial reporting purposes:
Group Company
AEE KAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TF C—TTNF Z—B-BF ZTITIF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET FHEx F&IT
Deferred tax assets EERIE & B 1,929 1,880 = =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEE E (36,038) (30,118) (220) (340)
(34,109) (28,238) (220) (340)
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18.

19.

20.

E-EF+-A=+—RHIFE

R E Lk

DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) EERIE (&)
The amounts of the deferred tax assets not recognised during the year are as FARERBELERIEEERTBUT
follows:
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—ZE-ZF —ZETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F& T
Tax effect of: BB E
— unused tax losses —REAHEEE 2,630 1,850

Deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses has not been recognised in the
financial statements due to the unpredictability of future profit streams
against which the tax losses can be utilised. The tax losses of the
subsidiaries operating in the PRC can be carried forward for 5 years and
tax losses of the subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong will not be expired
under the current tax legislation.

Company

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Company did not have any

significant unprovided deferred taxation.

B A AT PR A 4 B 5 TR S 1R B R RN R R B B 1N T R
AE - B AR BRI IR R RERIE TR
BE - NPBRZENNHERRNTIABRAAES
F - MREELENNBARNBIBBRRERT
BOER T & ER

AT

RZB-"ZER-_FTTEAF+-_RA=+—0 K2R
Iﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬂi%ﬁ LAER A o

PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT — GROUP 19. #RHFYE-XEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT

Amounts comprise: CREPIE

Construction costs FEEER AR 154,222 125,721
Land use rights b fF A R 367,022 415416
Interest capitalised FEERE - 718
521,244 541,855

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of interest incurred
eligible for capitalisation in 2010 was 5.81% (2009: 5.76%).

Properties held under development included leasehold interests in land
located in the PRC with lease terms expiring from 2045 to 2077.

As at 31 December 2010, certain leasehold interests in land of

approximately HK$315,710,000 (2009: HK$349,208,000) were pledged
to secure certain bank loans granted to the Group (note 26(a)).

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE — GROUP

Properties held for sale included leasehold interests in land located in
the PRC with lease terms expiring from 2061 to 2077.

As at 31 December 2010, the carrying value of the leasehold interests in
land amounted to HK$29,980,000 (2009: HK$49,159,000).

20.

—E-TFEAREENA
AR ERE81% (ZF

BRI S SRR
TNEF : 5.76%) ©

BERTYEBFBLATHEN L HEERES  HEH
H_ZTMAFE_TLtFHEER -

RZZE—ZFF+_-_HA=+—8H ' £315,710,0008 T
(ZZEZTNF : 349,208, OOO}%ﬁ) BT i SR
HORAEEEENS TRITER T AL (H 5
26(a)) °

SENE - AEE

HFEMESFEMNHEN T HHEER
—ER—FEZTLEFHEM -

P HEHA

RZZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H  THHAEEZOE
(& 429,980,000/ 7T (—Z T NL4F : 49,159,000/
JL) °
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DR LR Nt frmeedt

21. INVENTORIES — GROUP 21. B —AEH
FEERKAEARNEESER

Inventories represent low value consumables carried at cost.

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE P& U BR K
Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-EF ZEENF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Accounts receivable FE YR K 41 353
Less: Provision for impairment B ORE R - =
41 353

Accounts receivable generally have credit terms of 30 to 60 days (2009:
30 to 60 days) and no interest is charged. All accounts receivable are
denominated in Renminbi. The ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts
receivable is as follows:

FEW R R E BB — MR B30E60KR (ZET N EF -
30Z260K) RAGHE o A RERFAAREE -

REBRYBRRORESTIT

TEH
2010 2009
—B-FF — IR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Within 30 days 30RAR 21 284
31 - 60 days 31—60X = 69
61 - 90 days 61—90XK 20 =
41 353

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is considered a reasonable
approximation of fair value as this financial asset, which is measured at
amortised cost, is expected to be paid within a short timescale, such that
the time value of money impact is not significant.

Accounts receivable which are past due are analysed as follows:

FEHSZEE ANEEERRSABEOIAAER B
He A E YRR - WIRAREAA

N Hilt o WEEANESRERFE -

BHEKERERDMAT

rEE
2010 2009
—E-TF —EThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Fully performing under credit term REEH2HESR 21 353
Past due but not impaired BHEARRE 20 =
41 353
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BE

22.

23.

—E-EFTASt—ALFE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Contd)

Past due but not impaired receivables represent rental income. The
directors consider that these receivables would be recovered and no
provision was made against past due as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s accounts receivable are
individually assessed to be impaired. The individually impaired
receivables, if any, are recognised based on the credit history of its
customers, such as financial difficulties or default in payments, and
current market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment provision
is recognised. The accounts receivable represents rental income from
leasing properties. Monthly rents are normally received in advance and
sufficient rental deposits are held to minimise credit risk.

As at 31 December 2010, accounts receivable of HK$21,000 (2009:
HK$353,000) was neither past due nor impaired. These related to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

22.

23.

R E Lk

FEWBRK ()

BHERBEREFREEREHSRA - EFRR
ZERYGIEA TRE - AR —F—FFR_F
TAF+ A=+ BXELBHAFIRELBE -

RmEHR - NEE Y EUERRER 2R E - &
BB LGRS (N A) THR IR ELZ P /15 B ask (4
TGRSR ZIRE TR - Bt - 25
REFERERE  BUREREHEDENEHE K
A BAHESBERLERR  YHEARENESRK
SAOREERERR -

RZZB-TF+-_H=+—H ' £8R21,00087T
(ZZZNF : 353,000/ 7T) B FE UL IR SR A 28 H K%
B o FRIATYER R DA BN BB LS EZ T
FER -

ENERE AAREAREMERRER

Group
AEME
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETTNF
HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FHEIT
Deposits paid and prepayments BifRe RBENHIE 11,210 8,717
Other receivables H b jE U FR I8 21,125 27,283
32,335 36,000

The carrying amounts of deposits paid and other receivables
approximate to their fair values and those are neither past due nor
impaired.

Effire Rk EMEKKBNEREESRLR L EEE
% BXEmEHERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 24, FEEERR
Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the Group’s accounts AEEEMNERNRREZZZASTAT :
payable is as follows:
AEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt #E FEx FAT

Within 30 days 30K AR 106 317

31 - 60 days 31—60XK 93 91

61- 90 days 61—90K 93 60

91 - 365 days 91 —365K 194 308

Over 365 days 365K A £ 1,160 1,254

Rent received on behalf of landlords REFXWERHE R (a) 1,646 2,030

Accrued construction cost and other FERTRE AR H A TE B AR

project-related expenses (b) 86,237 36,963
87,883 38,993

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the Group’s FAERIEBRERIE  HASEREKERNEEE

accounts payable are considered to be a reasonable approximation of WRIEREE N EBEAEMESE °

fair value.

Notes: Ffat -

(@)  Rent received on behalf of landlords comprised net rental received from (@) REFZUWIHESSEMEFKEAE S NBRINR
tenants after netting off fee charged to them provided by external service Bl 75 4 FE 75 BT IR B FR 1R RO FTAS 5438 ©
providers.

(b)  Included in the above amounts are construction cost and other project- (b) LaieBEEERZT-—ZTF+-_A=+—HWHER
related expense payable amounted to approximately HK$86,237,000 FEEEACAR I E A TH B #8785 2 £986,237,0007 7T (=
(2009: HK$36,963,000) as at 31 December 2010 which were accrued TTNF 1 36,963,000/87T) * iz BIIREERA R
based on the terms of the relevant agreements and the progress of the EGERNIBREERN BN —ZTF+=A=
projects, and were not due for payment as at 31 December 2010. +—BMREEZA -

25. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. EstER - cWiZREREMENSRIE
AEE

2010 2009

—E-ZF —TENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FAT

Deposits received B Uiz e 40,381 57,957

Accruals and other payables e E A K E M ER K8 31,601 23,377

71,982 81,334

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of the Group’s FEFIEBRNIE  WASEEFER - Bz

accruals, deposits received and other payables are considered to be a REMEMNFENREOEEREREEAAEE

reasonable approximation to their fair values. BIAERE ©
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26. BORROWINGS 26. (B E&
Group Company
rEE b NG|
As at 31 December As at 1 January
R+t=-—A=+—A8 R—A—H
2010 2009 2009 2010 2009
—E-TF —TTNF —TENF —E-ZF —ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FHBT FHAT TAERT FHAT
(restated) (restated)
(& E5) (& E5)
Current liabilities ok B=Ri
Bank overdraft RITEX - - 6,489 - -
Portion of term loans from AR—EREIRER
banks due for repayment ) HAERTT
within one year BRI 227,279 40,448 76,160 = =
Portion of term loans from AR —FREIHEER
banks due for repayment MESERERER
after one year which GRE E HRER 1T
contain a repayment on EREa
demand clause 35,242 21,327 23,569 - -
Loans from a related company —FEBERRER = 30,000 = = 10,000
Loans from non-controlling JEIERE R E R
shareholders 23,475 95,564 - - -
285,996 187,339 106,218 - 10,000
Non-current liabilities ¥ RBEE
Bank loans RITER 57,348 228,620 159,850 - =
Loans from non-controlling IR RE
shareholders 91,223 22,057 110,413 - -
148,571 250,677 270,263 - -
434,567 438,016 376,481 - 10,000
The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans ATERTER (BEAREREENTEHER) HE
repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion B SHPAT BR o ’EJJ’A FRIBMEENBEREX
of term loans due for repayment after one year which contain a BEEKKRESEARDEABENEHERLHTEHE
repayment on demand clause and that is classified as a current liability HAR— ¢W5ﬁ1§ °

is expected to be settled within one year.

FRERARAE

—E-TFEFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_Z-—ZF+_A=+—HLLFE

26. BORROWINGS (cont'd) 26. &8 (&)
Borrowings were repayable as follows: HEZEEEWT
Group Company
AEE AAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TF C—TTNhF Z—B-BF ZTITIF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt st FHExT FHET FHET T
Within one year —F R
Term loans, unsecured FEHER - EEKE (d) 2,843 5,968 = =
Term loans, secured EHER - A (a),(d) 224,436 34,480 - -
Loans from a related —EBEEARER
company, unsecured 4K 1 (b) - 30,000 - 10,000
Loans from non-controlling IR R E TR
shareholders, unsecured 4 4K 1 (c) 23,475 95,564 = =
In the second year EF-FNA
Term loans, unsecured TEHER - EEKIE (d) 2,530 2,000 = =
Term loans, secured EHER - A (a),(d) 35,636 197,730 = =
Loans from non-controlling IR E K -
shareholders, unsecured KR (c) - 22,057 - =
In the third to fifth year =ZhF
Term loans, unsecured FEHER - EEKH (d) 6,037 3,327 = =
Term loans, secured EHER - A (a), (d) 33,183 23,940 = =
Loans from non-controlling IR RER
shareholders, unsecured KR (c) 91,223 = - =
After the fifth year RF AR
Term loans, secured EHER - A (a), (d) 15,204 22,950 - -
434,567 438,016 - 10,000

(a)  Bank loans were secured by pledge of certain land and buildings, (a) WROTEFUAEEETIHRETF  REWE
investment properties, properties held under development of the AREZERPYE KE14 - 15K%19) EAIE
Group (note 14, 15 and 19). As at 31 December 2009, certain e RZBEENFF+=-_A=+—8 TR
bank loans were secured by certain properties held by a related BTy A — M A "l Fontwell Holdings
company, Fontwell Holdings Limited (“Fontwell”) (note 34(a)). Limited ([Fontwelll) #48 #& T ¥ % (E R A

(Mt3E34(a)) °

(b)  Loans from a related company, Chong Lai (Panama) S.A. (“Chong (b) —fBEARIChong Lai (Panama) S.A.
Lai"), (note 34(a)) are unsecured and interest bearing in range of ([Chong Lail) B (Fi7F34(a)) AR - W
3.66% t0 6.25% (2009: 3.66% to 4.71%) per annum. HEF K3 66%E6.25% (T NF :

3.66%ZE4.71%) 5T B °

(c)  Loans from non-controlling shareholders are unsecured and () IFZEMBRERASERARLE - ZHEXRE
interest free. The loans were initially recognised at fair value and ERARBERR - HEREHEKAYR - &
subsequently stated at amortised cost which was estimated by SEEC AR T AT B F 2= ([THi5 A ]) iR sz 4t
discounting the nominal value of the loans at market interest rate EXNAEEGTSE #E2=—FF+=A
(“MIR™). For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group has =+—HIEFE  ANEBHEEERKRRENRE
renegotiated the terms of these loans with non-controlling L B FRAIEK - EERAA BB ™M
shareholders. The directors considered that such revision did not REREEFHETIEE] - MERMEREE
represent a modification of the original loans and accordingly, the SRR IR E R - WIRE A4 BERERH
extinguishment accounting has been adopted to derecognise B3R o FTEER/4,573,0008 T (ZEZNF ¢
these loans and recognise new loans at their fair values. The ) AN A ESE B RNER B IEZERR
resulting adjustment of HK$4,573,000 (2009: Nil) is recognised REE -RZTE—TF+-—A=+—H mi5
in consolidated statement of changes in equity as a capital FEREFFEL6%E6.75% (T A F :
contribution from the non-controlling shareholders. As at 31 6.75%) °
December 2010, MIR was in range of 1.6% to 6.75% (2009:

6.75%) per annum.

(d)  The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates (d) BXRFEDNRERBHEABEOHEETERBES
set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any B - WEGT RE(REREREROTE o
repayment on demand clause.
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26.

27.

—E-EFTASt—ALFE

BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies and have the following effective interest rates at the end of the
reporting period:

R E Lk

26. fE8 (&)

EEEREEDATIEE REEL - RREHR
MERF DT

Group Company
by | KRR
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-%% “ZENE —E-%% “ZENE
Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
per annum, per annum, per annum, per annum,
effective as at effective as at effective as at effective as at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
R-2-%% RZZZNE R-E-%% RZZZNE
HK$000 +=A=t+-H HK$'000 +-A=+—H HK$000 t+=A=t+-H HK$000 +ZA=t+—8H
TET WEREF= TET MERERNE  T#xn WEBREFRE TET MEREF %
Hong Kong dollars BT 59,592 1.07% - 6.75% 107,996 1.05% - 6.25% - - 10,000 5.25% - 6.25%
United States dollars EY 99,091 1.60% - 2.60% 83,920 6.75% - - - -
Renminbi ARE 275,884 5.13% - 5.96% 246,100 5.64% - 8.69% - - - -
434,567 438,016 - 10,000

Borrowings were under floating interest rates.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with the covenants of the
banking facilities, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans and does not consider it probable that the banks will exercise
their discretion to demand repayment for so long as the Group continues
to meet these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management
of liquidity risk are set out in note 39.4. As at 31 December 2010 and
2009, none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 10 August 2007, the Company entered into a Convertible Notes
Subscription Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Asia Financial Holdings
Limited (“AFH”) and Asia Insurance Company, Limited (“AICL").
Mr. Chan is a director of AFH and AICL. Pursuant to the Agreement, AFH
and AICL agreed to acquire the convertible notes (the “Notes”) at
HK$50,000,000 and HK$25,000,000 respectively, in total of the
principal amount of HK$75,000,000 at interest rate of 5% per annum,
payable in arrears on a quarterly basis on 31 March, 30 June,
30 September and 31 December of each year between the date of issue
of the Notes and the maturity date. The maturity date is 60 months from
the date of issue of the Notes.

The Notes are not transferable and will not be allowed for redemption
before the maturity date. Unless previously converted, the Company is
obliged to redeem the Notes on the maturity date at the redemption price
of 110% of the principal amount of the Notes outstanding together with
accrued interest payables.

The principal amount of HK$35,000,000 (HK$25,000,000 for AFH and
HK$10,000,000 for AICL) of the Notes shall be compulsorily converted
at the conversion price of HK$1.10 within seven business days if the
closing price per share of the Company is HK$1.10 or higher for ten
consecutive trading days during the period between the date of issue of
the Notes and five business days prior to the maturity date.

27.

BETIRFHHERGTE -

REEEHE ﬁgﬁiﬁgﬁ BT & 5 B HIERTT Y
BERANETER  URBRBAREEMEEEFZ
ERE  RITPRARLTEEBBEEERER - A
SERDECRREENE - THBENME
94 -R-_ZE—ZFR " TTEAFT_H=+—
B AEEYEERERNBREEABNORLY -

RRERE

RZZEZLFNA+TR KRR EGMNEEEE (2

) BER AR ([EMeR)) REMRRERQF ([
MR ) T2 AR AR SRR R IE Wk (k) - BRSE

ETEMNERETMNRBNES - REWHE - BM
@R EMNREREE S HBIA50,000,000% T K&
25,000,000/ 7T 3R & 78 & 42 %8 75,000,000/ 7T 49 7
BERER (TRE]) - FAERE% - AREEEITH
HAEHNHEPEEF=A=+—H ~A=+H "
NA=Z+TERtTZA=+—HBEFEXMAHFAE -
AHA BB REETEHMEFE0EA -

T?J%TTLE% ' IHE FEAR AT AR ER - B 2 Al
BERBEIN  RARAEERIHAZERTRE
$$%§E’\J110%§§EEEE’UJ@H*UEJ%E@EEE@%
% e

WMERBEETERRIMANAEE %R BREE
TEXZENARAFRETERL 10T IA

k- AIEE R AN © 5635,000,0007% 7T (M & @&
25,000,000/ 7T - T 22 M 4R M 410,000,000 7T) 282

REBEXARRHIZLIOB T L BRE Lk -
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27.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Cont'd)

In addition, the Notes can be converted by the holder into ordinary
shares of the Company at any part of the principal amount of the Notes in
the multiple of HK$25,000,000, at a conversion price of HK$1.10 per
share, at any time during the period between the date of issue of the
Notes and the maturity date.

68,181,818 is the maximum number of ordinary shares that can be
converted.

Further details of the terms and conditions of the Notes were disclosed in
the announcement and circular of the Company dated 17 August 2007
and 10 September 2007 respectively.

The Notes were issued to AFH and AICL on 15 October 2007.

The fair values of the Notes were determined by the directors of the
Company with reference to the valuation performed by Norton Appraisals
Limited, a firm of independent professional valuers with appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar derivative
instruments with reference to market values.

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the Notes are
as follows:

The fair value of the liability component was calculated based on the
present value contractually determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the required yield, which was determined with reference to
the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible notes and
remaining time to maturity.

The residual amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, is included in the equity attributable to owners of the
Company in convertible notes equity reserves, net of deferred tax.

The Notes recognised in the statement of financial position are calculated
as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-_Z-—ZF+_A=+—HLLFE

27. TRRER @

AN - HEARRERTE A E2H A PR E
AREZRER1IETHAREFRBEASENE
IR BRARBDEBRR  REBABREAER
25,000,000/ 7T MY 5 £ ©

AR RRWEE LRA68,181,8184 -

SBRHRR RIGIF O E — P F B BIRA AR A H
RTEEHFENATERER-ETEFNAATHED
N R o

BERZZET+FTATHEBHREMNE R REMERE
BITRE -

SENAREBEERARARNESZ2ELABRNEE
RABMELNGHEEE  EREBEAEERAFT
BEREEERNBLEEMEN - BE2EMERNT
HRLUTET AT EERLHER -

SRMHERMERANTERBRAT

BEFINAABEENANEENRRRRRE
BN ERRZTBENRETE - MREREEAA
SEN AR B A 5 H) R &2 H B A 6 R g4
REE °

RERERERERESNEE  FATRRREES
FEET AR BRREGER (NRETHRE) A -

R ERR MR AERNRIFRAT A XGFE

Group and Company

AEBRALQF

2010 2009

—ZE-ZF ZTENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

Fair value of convertible notes AMBREENARE 75,000 75,000
Equity component EmE D (3,650) (3,650)
Liability component on initial recognition M ERE 71,350 71,350
Net carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—HBHREEFE 72,942 72,212
Interest expense B F 4,480 4,480
Interest paid EATFE (3,750) (3,750)
Net carrying amount as at 31 December Rt+t-ZA=+—HWEREZFE 73,672 72,942

The effective interest rate of the liability component is 6.28% (2009: BETFSHNERFNEE6.28% (ZTETNF

6.28%) per annum. Interest expense on the Notes is calculated using
the effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate to the
liability component. No convertible notes have been converted into
ordinary shares of the Company.

6.28%) g TTJ%E’J?U BRXTIRERN AR A AL
DABBRMERAE - WERABMBRZBREELBBAR
A AL o
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R E Lk

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B
2010 2009
“E-2% —ETHE
Number Number of
of shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
BHEE TERT & E FAET

Authorised: ETE -

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEC.OLE LA T AR 30,000,000,000 300,000 30,000,000,000 300,000

Issued and fully paid: BEARAR :

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREE.OIB T LB

At 1 January ®—A—H 1,169,439,685 11,694 1,162,809,685 11,628
Issue of ordinary shares on BT ERE

exercise of share options (Note 1) mETLER (FF1) - - 6,630,000 66
Issue of ordinary shares (Note 2) BATLR (F722) 109,200,000 1,092 = =

At 31 December R+=A=+—-H 1,278,639,685 12,786 1,169,439,685 11,694

Notes: et -

1. For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company issued 6,630,000 1. HE-ZTTNF+-A=1T—HLLFE ' X265
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in relation to the exercise of the share REBETEERABESREBAIR0.1915H TIT
options by certain employees of the Group at the subscription price of {557 B8 A% 42 11 3£776,630,0000% & A% EH0.01 7 T 1)
HK$0.1915 per ordinary share (note 29). The difference between the A% (Mi7E29) - REEEHMEER Z581,203,0007 7T
subscription price and par value amounting to HK$1,203,000 was credited EEFARGIEE 1IN REZSTNFETENR
to share premium. In addition, the portion of share option reserves in AR A BB AR A (R 50 D £290,000/8 T E B R E AR
relation to the exercise of the share options exercised during the year of AR MIEE °
2009 amounted to HK$290,000 was transferred to the Company’s share
premium.

2. For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company issued 109,200,000 2. BE-_Z—ZF+-_A=+—RHLFE  A28%H

29.

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in relation to the acquisition of leasehold
land and buildings from one of its related parties at a consideration of
HK$27,300,000, which has been determined based on a discount of 30%
to their fair values of HK$39,000,000, at an issue price of HK$0.25 per
ordinary share. The purchase has been accounted for as a share-based
payment transaction in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
(“HKFRS 2”). The leasehold land and buildings have been recognised at
their fair values of HK$39,000,000 based on a valuation of DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limtied, a firm of independent qualified professional surveyors.
The difference between the subscription price and par value of total issued
shares amounting to HK$26,208,000 and the 30% discount to fair values
of the leasehold land and buildings amounting to HK$11,700,000 were
credited to the Company’s share premium (notes 34(a)(iv) and 37).

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Pursuant to the written resolutions of all the then shareholders passed on
14 November 2005, the Company has conditionally adopted the Share
Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) for employee compensation.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a flexible
means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the participants for their contributions to the
Group and for such other purposes as the board of directors (the
“Board”) may approve from time to time.

29.

427,300,000 TT HY X & (3 H 2 4 {B1E39,000,000
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29.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Cont'd)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, invite any
executive or non-executive directors including independent non-
executive directors or any employees (whether full-time or part-time) of
the Company, its subsidiaries and associated companies; any
discretionary objects of a discretionary trust established by any
employees, executive or non-executive directors of each member of the
Group or its associated companies; any consultants, professional and
other advisers to each member of the Group or its associated companies
(or persons, firms or companies proposed to be appointed for providing
such services); any chief executives or substantial shareholders of the
Company; any associates of any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company; and any employees (whether full-time or
part-time) of substantial shareholders of the Company, provided that the
Board may have absolute discretion to determine whether or not one falls
within the above categories, (together, the “Participants” and each a
“Participant”), to take up options (“Option(s)”) to subscribe for shares at
a price determined in accordance with the paragraph below.

In determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant, the Board would
take into account such factors as the Board may at its discretion consider
appropriate.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the date on which the Scheme is adopted, after which
period no further Options will be granted but in all other respects the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect, and
Options which are granted during the life of the Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant.

The subscription price in respect of each share issued pursuant to the
exercise of Options granted hereunder shall be a price solely determined
by the Board and notified to a Participant and shall be at least the highest
of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the business day on which an offer is
accepted by the grantee or if such date of acceptance by the
grantee is not a business day, the immediately preceding business
day;

(b)  a price being the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date on which an offer
is accepted by the grantee (provided that the new issue price shall
be used as the closing price for any business day falling within the
period before listing of the shares where the Company has been
listed for less than 5 business days as at the date on which an
offer is accepted by the grantee); and

(c)  the nominal value of a share.

29.

For the year ended 31 December 2010
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE

29.

—E-EFTASt—ALFE

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Conta)

The total number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue on the date of commencement of dealings in
the shares on the Stock Exchange (“Scheme Mandate Limit”), unless the
Company obtains an approval from its shareholders. Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted for the
purpose of calculating such 10% limit.

On 9 June 2010, an ordinary resolution regarding the refreshment of
Scheme Mandate Limit was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). Starting from 9 June
2010, further options to subscribe up to 116,943,968 ordinary shares of
the Company, being 10% of the total number of shares in issue on the
date of AGM are available to be granted under the Scheme.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Scheme, the maximum
number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the Options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding Options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

Offer of an option (“Offer”) shall be deemed to have been accepted by
any Participant (the “Grantee”) who accepts an Offer in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme and the option to which the Offer relates shall
be deemed to have been granted and to have taken effect when the
duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of the Offer duly
signed by the Grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the granting thereof is
received by the Company within 14 days from the date upon which the
Offer is made.

All share-based employee compensation will be settled in equity.

29.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd) 29. URMPZNNEEHMH &)
Details of the Options granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme RZE—ZTF+A=+—8 ' AaalREZ 2
and the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2010 were as follows: BHMmERITENBREFBEOT ¢
Number of options
BREHA
Balance at Expired/
31 December Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
2009 and during during during 31 Decemher price
Date of grant Exercisable period 1 January 2010 the year the year the year 2010 per share
dd/mmfyyyy dd/mm/yyyy HKS
RZBENE
tZA=t+-H R-ZB-2%
R=%-%% RER RER RER  tZB=t+-H
REAH fiid 1 -B-BHEs R’ it = V&S e BRARE
A/B/% B/B/% BT
Executive directors
HrEs
Mr. Taochaifu Choofuang  04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - = (3,765,636) - 0.6350
(“Mr. C.F. Tao")
BEBLE 18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - = (3,600,000) - 0.5240
7,365,636 - - (7,365,636) =
Mr. Tao Richard 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - = (3,765,636) - 0.6350
(“Mr. Richard Tao")
BERTEE 18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) - 0.5240
7,365,636 - = (7,365,636) -
Mr. Tao Paul 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - (3,765,636) - 0.6350
(“Mr. Paul Tao")
BHELE 18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) - 0.5240
7,365,636 - = (7,365,636) -
Mr. Kong Mui Sum 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - (3,765,636) - 0.6350
Lawrence
IRREE 18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) - 0.5240
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000 03750
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - - - 4,571,000 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 - - - 3,744,000 0.1915
18,880,636 - - (7,365,636) 11,515,000

96

New Heritage Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2010



For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE-Z—2E+-A=t+—ALEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

R E Lk

29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd) 29. URBZANEETMH &
Number of options
BREHE
Balance at Expired/
31 December Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
2009 and during during during 31 December price
Date of grant Exercisable period 1 January 2010 the year the year the year 2010 per share
dd/mm/yyyy dd/mm/yyyy HKS
RZZE0E
+ZR=t-H RZ8-2%
R=%-%% RER RER RER  TZBZt-H
BHAH EHH —-B-BH&R & i d BR/ %% ife BRTKE
B/R/% B/B/% BT
Executive directors (Cont'd)
HrEE (8
Mr. Yim Chun Leung 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - = (3,765,636) - 0.6350
|ttt
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - (3,600,000) - 0.5240
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000 0.3750
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - - - 4,571,000 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 - - - 3,744,000 0.1915
18,880,636 - - (7,365,636) 11,515,000
Employees of the Group 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 4,564,788 - - (4,564,783) - 0.6350
r5EES
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 6,106,000 - - (6,106,000) - 0.5240
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 4,900,000 - - (1,600,000) 3,300,000 0.3750
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 8,006,000 - - (2,795,000) 5,211,000 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 800,000 - - - 800,000 0.1915
24,376,788 - - (15,065,788) 9,311,000
84,234,968 - - (51,893,968) 32,341,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd) 29. URMPZNNEEHMH &)
Details of the Options granted by the Company pursuant to the Scheme RZZBEZNF+ZRA=+—8 ' "AaREZE
and the Options outstanding as at 31 December 2009 were as follows: BHMmERITENBREFBEOT ¢
Number of options
BREHA
Balance at Expired/
31 December Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
2008 and during during during 31 Decemher price
Date of grant Exercisable period 1 January 2009 the year the year the year 2009 per share
dd/mmfyyyy dd/mm/yyyy HKS
RZBENE
tZA=t+-H RZBEhEF
R=280E RER RER RER  tZB=t+-H
REAH fiid 1 -B-BHEs R’ it = V&S e BRARE
A/B/% B/B/% BT
Executive directors
HrEs
Mr. C.F. Tao 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 - 09/04/2009 6,188,225 - - (6,188,225) - 0.8060
BEELE
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - - 3,765,636 0.6350
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.5240
13,553,861 - - (6,188,225) 7,365,636
Mr. Richard Tao 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 - 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - - (6,828,353) - 0.8060
BRI EE
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - - 3,765,636 0.6350
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.5240
14,193,939 - - (6,828,353) 7,365,636
Mr. Paul Tao 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 - 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - = (6,828,353) = 0.8060
RHHEE
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - - 3,765,636 0.6350
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.5240
14,193,989 - = (6,828,353) 7,365,636
Mr. Kong Mui Sum 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 - 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - - (6,828,353) - 0.8060
Lawrence
IRRTE 04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - - 3,765,636 0.6350
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.5240
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000 03750
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - - - 4,571,000 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 - - - 3,744,000 0.1915
25,708,989 - = (6,828,353) 18,830,636
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd) 29. URBZANEETMH &
Number of options
BREHA
Balance at Expired/
31 December Granted Exercised Lapsed Balance at Exercise
2008 and during during during 31 December price
Date of grant Exercisable period 1 January 2009 the year the year the year 2009 per share
dd/mm/yyyy dd/mm/yyyy HK$
RZZENE
TZR=t-H R=ZENE
R=Z2EhE RER RER RER  tZA=t-A
REHAH (il -B-BH&8 & i d BR/ %% ife BRTKE
B/B/% R/B/% A7
Executive directors (Contd)
$17ES (8)
Mr. Yim Chun Leung 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 - 09/04/2009 6,828,353 - - (6,828,353) - 0.8060
REREE
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 3,765,636 - - - 3,765,636 0.6350
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 3,600,000 - - - 3,600,000 0.5240
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000 0.3750
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 4,571,000 - - - 4,571,000 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 3,744,000 - - - 3,744,000 0.1915
25,708,989 - - (6,828,353) 18,830,636
Employees of the Group 04/04/2006 10/04/2006 - 09/04/2009 4,340,272 - - (4,340,272) - 0.8060
rEEEE
04/07/2007 04/07/2007 - 03/07/2010 4,744,702 - = (179914) 4,564,788 0.6350
18/10/2007 18/10/2007 - 17/10/2010 6,364,000 - - (258,000) 6,106,000 0.5240
29/04/2008 29/04/2008 - 28/04/2011 5,100,000 - - (200,000) 4,900,000 0.3750
21/07/2008 21/07/2008 - 20/07/2011 8,406,000 - = (400,000) 8,006,000 0.3000
19/11/2008 19/11/2008 - 18/11/2011 7,830,000 - (6,630,000) (400,000) 800,000 0.1915
36,784,974 - (6,630,000) (5,778,186) 24,376,788
130,144,791 - (6,630,000) (39,279,823) 84,234,968
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29. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION (Contd)

Options outstanding and weighted average exercise price for the

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

29. U@ EEFHH &)

RS R R RTTEIE R E R g HTEE R

reporting periods presented are as follows: O
2010 2009
\ —E-2F —ETNF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Number price Number price
InfEF g g5
L =] TEE Eg= 1TfEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding as at 1 January R—A—BRTE 84,234,968 0.46 130,144,791 0.54
Exercised 171 - - (6,630,000) 0.19
Expired JE (47,498,968) 0.58 (37,841,909) 0.80
Lapsed K (4,395,000) 0.33 (1,437,914) 0.37
Outstanding as at 31 December R+=—A=+—BXK7&E 32,341,000 0.29 84,234,968 0.46
Exercisable as at 31 December R+-ZA=+—RBa{7E 32,341,000 84,234,968

For the year ended 31 December 2010, no option was exercised and
47,498,968 options were expired pursuant to the Scheme. For the year
ended 31 December 2009, 6,630,000 options were exercised resulting
in issue of 6,630,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and 37,841,909
options were expired pursuant to the Scheme. The weighted average
remaining contractual life of the Options outstanding at
31 December 2010 is approximately 0.57 year (2009: 1.05 years).

No options were exercised during the year. For the year ended
31 December 2009, the weighted average share price at the date of
exercise was HK$0.34.

BE-Z-ZF+-F=+—HILFE - BREZX:T
B WEBRREETR - 547,498,968 B ED
IR -BE_ZTTNF+_A=+T—HIEFE &
1B %=t 8l 0 6,630,00007 fE IR AEETTE - HEELT
6,630,000k FRREEO.01E T EBAX - 5
37,841 909 R EE R - R—T—FF+ A
=t+—H  WARTENBRENEFIRGEOF
HHROLS7F (ZZBZNF : 1.059) °

FRALETEEMNBERE BE_TTNAET A
St BLEFEE  RITERHAMETFARES
0.34/87T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

30. RESERVES

(a)  Group

R E Lk

30. f#&
(a) #*%£H

2010 2009
—E-TF —ZEENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
K&t FHET T
Retained profits IRE &H| 131,782 117,845
Share premium [iEarpiny=t (i) 487,337 449,429
Share option reserves e AR R 1,968 8,100
Convertible notes equity reserves AR R IR SRS 3,011 3,011
Merger reserve EHREE (i) 89,936 89,936

Hotel property, plant and equipment  JEEY % - HE &
revaluation reserve RIBEMFHE 16,811 12,275
Statutory reserve VA TE (iii) 28,173 24,310
Exchange reserve bE X 88,339 67,291
847,357 772,197
Proposed final dividend (note 11) BORAREBIR B (FaE1l1) 6,393 4,678
853,750 776,875

The movements of the Group’s reserves for the year are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 Law 3 of 1962, as
consolidated and revised, of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the excess of
the nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation completed
on 23 June 2005 over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

According to the relevant PRC Laws, companies
established in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10%
of its net profit after tax, as determined under the PRC
accounting regulation, to a statutory reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the entity’s registered
capital. The transfer of this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividend to the entity’s equity owners.
The statutory reserve is non-distributable other than upon
the liquidation of the entity.

Of the consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$18,061,000 for the year (2009:
HK$15,854,000), profit of HK$21,591,000 (2009: loss of
HK$12,735,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company for the year.

AEERBERFEANES)  RUBRINES

e s

EHRFE -

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RIERSHEEPFE2EREE (—
NZFE=FED %&??{:\.&ﬂ/nﬂ
PR ERR A DK T AR AR - M2
BERE D IRECE B AL - AR T‘Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BEN A BEBERET M ES

ZKEIE']/\GH?% 75’521‘%.75’\*7 =
W%’Rﬁjﬁ’ﬂﬂﬁzﬁﬁﬁ g iﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁi%ﬁ%
RAMEBEITHARARRHDEENERE ©

RIBAERE T EER - R BRI A
AR EE qu%EE'J%EE’JFﬁR&%W“
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BREREEZ A BEMEARL0% - Wi

BRI A AR R 0 KA B AT =
It  EAERBR TR DI - MZA

AERRRIRRSN o
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718,061,000 T (ZEZENF :
15,854,000/ 7T) * & & H21,591,000
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30. RESERVES (Contd)

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

30. f## (®)

(b) Company (b) ZA2AFH
Share  Convertible Proposed
Share option notes equity  Contributed Retained final
premium reserves reserves surplus profits dividend Total
TRREE Bk
ROEE BRERE BHRE EfRS RERF RERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn TER TE7r TEn
(note) (note) (note) (note) (note)
(B (FzE) (FzE) (B (PzE)
Balance s at 1 January 2009 RZZENE-A—-BBEH 447936 16,018 3,011 (22) 30,558 = 497,501
Loss for the year FEEBR - - - - (12,735) - (12,735)
Arising from issue of ordinary R ERERTERR
shares on exercise of share MEE (129
options (note 29) 1,493 (290) - - - - 1,203
Release upon lapse of vested EEBEREXNEER
share options - (7,628) - - 7,628 - -
Proposed final dividend (note 11)  BUEKRESRE (WzE11) - - - - (4,678) 4678 -
Balance as at 31 December 2009 ~ R=-ZEZAF+-F=1—H
and 1 January 2010 RZE-TE-F-HNEHR 449,429 8,100 3011 (22) 20,773 4,678 485,969
Profit for the year EERF = - - - 21,591 = 21,591
Issue of shares RUBRELHR
for the acquisition of EFmEIRN
leasehold land and buildings (fr228)
(note 28) 37908 - - - - - 37,908
Release upon lapse of vested EEBEREANEER
share options - (6,131) = - 61,131 - -
Dividend paid relating to 2009 ER-STNERERE
final dividend HERKE - - - - - (4,678) (4,678)
Proposed final dividend (note 11) K KRERE (Hz11) - - - - (6,393) 6,393 =
Balance as at 31 December 2010  W=Z-ZE+-F=T+-AMEH 487,337 1,969 3,01 (22) 42,102 6,393 540,790
Note: These reserve accounts comprise the Company’s reserves of HfeF - ERERBEAR R BB BAR R #®E A A A
HK$534,397,000 (2009: HK$481,291,000) in the statement of A A f# 534,397,000 T (ZEENF :
financial position of the Company. 481,291,000/ 7T) °
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of RARMEBEHES  BAEER-_TTRFA
the net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the AZ+=BEXMEEF MKENRERATNE
Group’s reorganisation completed on 23 June 2005 over the EFE  BHARNZEEEFAEMBETHAR
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange NRABRMEENESE -
therefor.
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—F—F

BE

31.

—=

EFE+_A=+—HILFE

RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

R E Lk

31. XRHFBITHER

Group
AEME
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FEx FHEIT
Analysis of restricted bank deposits: ZREBRITERDIT :
Deposit pledged against mortgage loans MEXEERIZBER
granted to the purchasers of properties MK T K (a) 6,624 6,917
Restricted bank deposits ZIREBITER (b) 12,088 1,151
18,712 8,068

(a)

(b)

The bank deposits were pledged as security in favour of banks
and financial institutions in the PRC which provided mortgage loan
to purchasers of properties for the period from the date of draw-
down of mortgage loans to the date when the certificates for
housing ownership and certificates of others’ interest for housing
ownership (collectively known as “Certificates”) are granted to the
property purchasers. Such charges would be released when the
Certificates are granted to the property purchasers. This deposit
earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rates.

In accordance with regulation issued by local government, certain
property development companies of the Group are required to
maintain certain amount of cash at designed bank accounts solely
for securing wages payments to contractors’ workers for
construction projects. The deposits earn interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposits rates.

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

(a)

(b)

HIRRRIBERE AL - AR EXERIER
EfmEEREREEMAREMER (BB %
FEH)) L ROTFEREERTERMEEE
REZBEFOEARTREBEE - FRE
i o ZEEMBREXEREZSERRRE
B o IFHRAE BIRITEFRFIR - RS H =
T8 e

BB T B RMORD] - REEE T YRR
RABANIEERTRSPFHEFESEAIR
& BIERBREBENEETAFS - TR
g HRITIERME - ZIFHMEEFE -

32. RERATEEY

ReERRSEEMAFOT :

Group Company
rEH AAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZF —TThFE ZT-ZTF TThHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T FHExT T
Cash at banks and in hand RITHEGF AR 422,108 348,296 140 5,178

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position are the following amounts denominated in a currency other than

RPBRRBERORERFEEEY - B THIA
AEERARABODEEE AN EEIIENH S

the functional currency of the Group and the Company to which they o
relate:
Group Company
AEE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-%F C-TTAF —¥-¥F C—TINF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET FHET FET
Renminbi AR 408,807 278,940 - -
United States dollars E7T 84 1,980 5 5
sezgraRan —2-2s4% 103
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32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (contd) 32. RERBEEEY ©)
Included in cash and cash equivalents of the Group is HK$403,957,000 RekReEBYEERAEENARBAENTF
(2009: HK$278,940,000) of bank balances denominated in Renminbi R EZRIVITHRITEE403,957,0008 T
are deposited with banks in the PRC, the conversion of these Renminbi (ZEZTNF : 278,940,000 7T) @ #ZFUARE
denominated balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and BB AR IR A INE B B BBUR A8 45 B9 SN EE
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC EHLERPTR S o
government.
The effective interest rate of cash at banks is in range of 0.01% to 0.65% RITHEENEBREFNRE0.01%E0.65% (ZZFTZTh
(2009: 0.01% to 0.3%) per annum and those have maturity within 30 F:0.01%=£0.3%)  WH30H (ZZZNF : 30
days (2009: 30 days). H) AEIE -

33. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 33. EEREREEAEHE
EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a EEMe
Salaries,
allowance Contribution
and other Gratuity to retirement
Fees  henefit in kind and bonus  benefit scheme Total
e
R R HA FO)- 1k BikE
we BRI R4 ST &It st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TART TERT THERT THERT TAERT
2010 —E-ZF
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. C. F. Tao BEEEE - 1,170 560 61 1,791
Mr. Richard Tao B RAT R & = 1,690 809 88 2,587
Mr. Paul Tao RSB = 1,690 809 88 2,587
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence TIHRREE = 1,690 807 91 2,588
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BiRSE L - 1,950 930 105 2,985
- 8,190 3,915 433 12,538
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Chan Bernard Charnwut BRES B h A& 150 = = = 150

Independent Non-Executive Directors BY EHTEE

Mr. Wong Gary Ka Wai FTREXE 225 - = = 225
Mr. Sun Leland Li Hsun BRAEEE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Chan Norman Enrique PREET S0 150 = = = 150
525 - - - 525
675 8,190 3,915 433 13,213
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

33. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

R E Lk

33. EEREREEAEME @

Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) (a) E=M< (&)
Salaries,
allowance Contribution
and other Gratuity to retirement
Fees  benefit in kind and bonus  benefit scheme Total
e
B R E A 2w 2 BKE
Lok EMAE RAEA FTEIHR Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHBT FHBT FHBT FHT
2009 —EEAF
Executive directors BITES
Mr. C. F. Tao BEHLE - 728 382 68 1,178
Mr. Richard Tao BRAT R - 1,051 553 98 1,702
Mr. Paul Tao PR T = 1,051 553 98 1,702
Mr. Kong Mui Sum Lawrence IR EE = 1,584 553 121 2,258
Mr. Yim Chun Leung BE=5E - 1,827 637 140 2,604
- 6,241 2,678 525 9,444
Non-executive director FHTEE
Mr. Chan Bernard Charnwut B B E 139 = = = 139
Independent non-executive directors BYFEHTES
Mr. Wong Gary Ka Wai FTREXE 208 = = = 208
Mr. Sun Leland Li Hsun BRustE 139 = = = 139
Mr. Chan Norman Enrique PR 4435 A 139 - - - 139
486 - - - 486
625 6,241 2,678 525 10,069
No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments and no HE_ZTZFR-_TTNF+-_A=+—H
share options were granted to the directors of the Company for the IHFE  BEESNEXRERETAH
years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 (note 29). INERN B E SRR IERE (F15E29) -
Senior management emoluments (h) BREEAEMS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group for the years ended
31 December 2010 and 2009 were all directors of the Company
and details of their emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented above.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group and as compensation for loss of office for the years ended
31 December 2010 and 2009.

HE—_ZT—ZFR-_TTNF+-_A=+—H
IHFE  AEBREGESHMA T ARAR
EF AABEMNE 2B EDWETR o

HE_ZTZFR-_TTNF+-_A=+—H
IHFE  AEEBERAARSHMA T
ERIBNE - LARSIE B ARE B sk e A B AR
SEMABSEE BB E -
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R E Lk

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Transactions with related parties

The Group has the following significant transactions with related

For the year ended 31 December 2010

BE-Z—2E+-A=t+—AILER

4. BEALRS

(a) EBEALTETHXRS

AEEHEBEATEETUTEARS :

parties:
Group
rEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt it FHET T
Rental expenses to Fontwell 2 5 ¥ Fontwell#9 7H € B 5% (i) (1,053) (814)
Pledge fee to Fontwell 2 £ F Fontwel 89 K 40 & (i) (66) -
Acquisition of leasehold land and A Fontwel W g 78 & 1 i &

buildings from Fontwell EF (iv) (27,300) =
Rental income from Clark Hatch MESRENTETRE

Fitness Centers (Shanghai) Ltd. BRAR ([ Ea])

(“Clark Hatch™) W B AR 6 A (ii) 580 828
Membership fee to Clark Hatch IR FRNRETHNESES (if) (240) (386)
Interest expenses to Chong Lai ¥ {4 F Chong Laity % 8.5 &% (i) (74) (581)
Notes: Wi

(i) Mr. C.F. Tao, Mr. Richard Tao and Mr. Paul Tao have beneficial
interests in Fontwell. The charge by Fontwell was in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements (note 26(a)).

(ii) Mr. Richard Tao and Mr. Paul Tao are directors of Clark Hatch and
Mr. Paul Tao has beneficial interests in Clark Hatch. The charge to
Clark Hatch was in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements. The membership fee was charged at terms mutually
agreed by both parties.

(iii) Mr. C.F. Tao, Mr. Richard Tao and Mr. Paul Tao have beneficial
interests in Chong Lai. The charge by Chong Lai was in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements.

(iv) For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group entered into an
acquisition agreement to purchase leasehold land and buildings at
a consideration of HK$27,300,000, which has been determined
based on a discount of 30% to their fair values of HK$39,000,000,
payable by allotting and issuing 109,200,000 ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each at an issue price of HK$0.25 per
ordinary share. The purchase has been accounted for as a share-
based payment transaction in accordance with HKFRS 2. The
leasehold land and buildings have been recognised at their fair
values of HK$39,000,000 based on a valuation by DTZ, a firm of
independent qualified professional surveyors. The difference
between the subscription price and par value of total issued shares
amounting to HK$26,208,000 and the 30% discount to fair values
of the leasehold land and buildings amounting to HK$11,700,000
were credited to the Company’s share premium (notes 28 and 37).

The purchase from Fontwell was made on price and conditions as
mutually agreed.

(b)  Balances with related parties

As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group did not have
outstanding balances with related parties.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

PEE R E - R EE REHEEER
FontwellfR ¥ 5 E 25425 © Fontwell JH iR #5480
B 19 MO IR SR URER 2 A (Pl 3E26(a)) °

BRTAEREHHEERRN R ETNE
= MEGEEERRRRBTTEEER
R o (A5 fr 5o/ 2 IR B B T IR IR AR R
B O IEFRIRER - BB IR T 1A
195 TE B 18R SR UKCER ©

BEBLE BRITEERBHELER
Chong Laiff # 8 Em iz ° Chong LaiJHiR IR
AR GEOERKRERER -

HE-_T-ZTF+_A=+—HILtEE K
EE T W - LA {E27,300,0005 7T
BERETHRET  FRAREDNRERR
{E1839,000,0008 LT IR30% MEE * A
BEMKRBENSESBEZERETERAA
109,200,000 Z X EI{EO0.01 78 T K Eim A% 2
- BHITEAESREMR0SET - EES
BARRE BV RS 4 R 257 51 BR & LARR 1D
TRHHRG  cHELHREFERAABE
39,000,000/ LR + BRA AR BETIRIE
BUABREXAESMEBERITETNGEE
AEAL - 2HERITRONREERAE
) = 5026,208,00078 7T M & L i R IEFH
AR EEITIR30%H)EEE 11,700,000 T E
AR A A B9 5 B (P 5E28 K% 37) °

AR [EFontwellfE B TH 3% 8 75 16 € B (B A& )2

AT ©

() EEBAEANLTHEREER

RoB-BFR-FEAF+=A=+-8 "
AEE RS AL D REARSEOES o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

R E Lk

4. AEANEXRZ (&)

(c) Key management personnel compensation (c) FEEEASHMHM
The directors are of the opinion that the key management EEZRR FEEBEABERREARRES -
personnel were solely the directors of the Company. Remuneration ENARRESHEHFMAOT :
paid to the Company'’s directors is as follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries, allowances and other benefit in kind & R EMEYF R 12,780 9,544
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme BINE TG 433 525
13,213 10,069
35. COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 3. RERKEHELZHE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BREE
Capital commitments in respect of properties held under AREBEBERTMENENEAENT :
development for the Group are as follows:
Group
AEHE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Contracted but not provided for B &AM REE 234,179 185,955
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Company did not have RZZE—ZTFR_TTNF+=_A=1+—1H "
any significant capital commitments. AR AW AR ERKEANHEPE o
(b)  Operating lease arrangements (h) R&EHEZH

(i) The Group had future aggregate minimum lease receipts
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land
and buildings which are receivable as follows:

()  AEERBTAHEEEEERK LT
REFHRRKEESERERNT

Group
AEE
2010 2009
—2-FF —TTNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Within one year —FR 9,616 9,314
In the second to fifth years E-_EZRF 6,600 8,354
16,216 17,668

The Group leases out its investment properties (note 15)
under operating lease arrangements which run for initial
periods of less than one year to five years (2009: less than
one year to three years) or expire at dates as mutually
agreed between the Group and the respective tenants,
without an option to renew the lease terms at the expiry
date. The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits.

AEERBEEHERHERBEREY
% (Fff3E15) @ VIF RN —FE=RF
(Z2TNEF : PR—FE=F) JEA
S B AR P KR ER B #Ew
M B B S0 R B AB AR YR e o TH
AR —RRITRERP XIRBIRS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. COMMITMENTS AND OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 35. RERKEHEZH @)
(Contd)
(h)  Operating lease arrangements (Cont'd) (h) REHEZHHE)

(i) The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments (i) AEERBIAHEHEL2HSEN TH
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land FEFHORRSEESEREENT ¢
and buildings which are payable as follows:

Group
AEH
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZTENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA 7T
Within one year —FN 184 1,268
In the second to fifth years F_ERF 19 190
203 1,458
The Group leases a number of properties under operating AEERBLEHELXHEEZEY
lease arrangements which run for initial periods of one to ¥ VTR EME(CETNE :
two years (2009: one to two years) or expire at dates as —EWF) IR A E R EEEEE LR
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective W E M B ERE R - M A B A R I B
landlords, without an option to renew the lease terms at the B EERE -
expiry date.
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group had no RZZE—TFRZTFTNF A=+
contingent rentals receivable or payable. —H - AN E I E A Uk R A
s
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Company had no REZE—ZTFER_TTNF+_A=1
operating lease commitments as lessor or lessee. —H - ARANEERDEASEEA
M AS & T &R HE o
36. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS — COMPANY 36. BHKEREN—AKDQT
The Company provided corporate guarantees to certain banks for all ARRRMETFHEBRARIMNATE ERIFEHERRE
unsecured term loans and overdrafts granted to subsidiaries (note 26). X mETIRITIREE A AR (HEE26) -
The fair value of the financial guarantee contracts recognised in the HE-Z-—ZTF+_A=+—HLEE £4ARQA
Company’s statement of financial position was HK$131,000 (2009: MEARRBRAERHABEREON AR EERS
HK$276,000) during the year ended 31 December 2010. The fair value 131,000 7T (ZEZT N : 276,000970) © AR5 HE
of financial guarantee contracts is determined using option pricing RENNARBEDKAEEERXEE 897
models where the main assumptions are the probability of default by the FHEZREANBE L BZLMN TN - RIS
subsidiaries. Such financial guarantee contracts have terms of one to EREYVNHEREZEZRAF (ZTEZTNEF : — 20
five years (2009: one to five years). &F) o
37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 37. XEHFBEEXRSH
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group purchased from one HE_T—ZTF+-_A=1T—HILFE  A£ERA
of its related parties leasehold land and buildings at a consideration of Heh—ZEE AL AR(E27,300,0008 TiEERE
HK$27,300,000, which has been determined based on a discount of T RiEF  BRANRENREAABERNIEORE
30% to their fair values of HK$39,000,000, payable by allotting and 39,000,000/ 7t M & E + M4 B8 FE T 5118 Th 5 B i
issuing 109,200,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each 2% N B 4T N2 F1109,200,0000% & AR I E0.0178 ST Y
at an issue price of HK$0.25 per ordinary share. The purchase has been TEREMN  BTEABREMEAR02SEIT - EE
accounted for as a share-based payment transaction in accordance with EIRRIE BB RS E R FE 257 5B B AR (5 S 1+
HKFRS 2. The leasehold land and buildings have been recognised at MR 5 - S i REFBEIE A A E{E39,000,000
their fair values of HK$39,000,000 based on a valuation by DTZ BILHER  BEEAARBEDNREBY A EREEA
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, a firm of independent qualified EMBERITERABETHEETESL - 250
professional surveyors. The difference between the subscription price BB 1T /SR IE (B B E (E /Y & 58 26,208,000/ 7T
and par value of total issued shares amounting to HK$26,208,000 and FHEITHREFHAABENEIONHEE
the 30% discount to fair values of the leasehold land and buildings 11,700,000/ 7T E 5t AR R AR 1735 8 (i 28 &%
amounting to HK$11,700,000 were credited to the Company’s share 34(a)(iv)) °
premium (notes 28 and 34(a)(iv)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 38. EXAEEHREER

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing properties commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristic of
the underlying assets.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio.
For this purpose net debt is defined as borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. The Group’s goal in capital management is to maintain a net
debt to equity ratio at a reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group’s overall strategy in capital management remains unchanged
during the year.

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

AEEEREANTIZARRREARAEEIHEL
LN AN B RRIR IR UL [ 3R K A3 4t F 23 45 8
TEENE - TEBRKREARKFEENEE
1 RAAEHKNAETRE

A BB AR 0 R B R AR E B RN 1
EIRA AL LI R -

AEBRFEERELROEEEREIEN - plit
Mz FEENERREERRENASEEY -
AEEEREENERARFAGERSEL TER/FR
BEHKT - BEFSIFHBERNER  AEETH
IR PRERMREHE - BEITHRD  RERAE
TRR BEFEBREIHEEERE

FA - AEEERERHNBERKERFTE -

RBERR - AREWFAEESRLEROT ¢

Group
rEE
As at 31 December As at 1 January
R+=—HA=+-—H ®—A—H
2010 2009 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET FH& T
(restated) (restated)
(&%) (& &E75)
Borrowings: BE
— Current —RE 285,996 187,339 106,218
— Non-current —JERE 148,571 250,677 270,263
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 32) & : e RIS EEY (H7£32) (422,108) (348,296) (125,973)
Net debt FaE 12,459 89,720 250,508
Total equity e 949,295 871,625 855,355
Net debt to equity ratio FEEERLE 1% 10% 29%
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39.

39.1

39.2

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES 39. KEREENBEREE
The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: currency risk, interest AEERZZEHHRER : IMNERR « FIRRAR
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk FERRERBESER - AEBNEERKRER
management focuses on unpredictability of financial markets and seeks ERERESBMIBN TR - WERKFHAE
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial EMBERANBETFHERERE - XEERE
performance. The Group currently does not have any written risk WETFRPAXHRBREEBRLIES] - A » EF
management policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors erEEdFeE  WHEFZEEBABEREEE N
meets periodically and cooperates closely with key management to DT REIEEEAEIE REEVERR
analyse and formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks.
The Group is not engaged in the trading of financial assets for speculative AEBWELEUBRKLSEENEHEEEE - &
purposes. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is SEFEYNEEZEMERERLEINGOT - HREZRE
exposed are described below. See also note 39.7 for a summary of YR BEERBERE I ] 28 239.7
financial assets and liabilities by category.
Currency risk 39.1 SERB
The Group reports its results in Hong Kong dollars. The Group’s NEBMZEENBTES - NEBREEINE
primary foreign currency exposure arises from its property REBRREERTFBENYEBRRRIREEE © Z
development and investment activities in the PRC. The functional FEBHNEEEAARE  MAH»SRI
currency of these operations is Renminbi and most of the financial BIMUARKESIE - BRURTBRNSREAE
instruments are denominated in Renminbi. No foreign currency TIERZER ZFTF RSB BB EAE
risk has been identified for the financial assets in the PRC as they BEHNEETE I ERCNFERNSRIEE
were denominated in a currency same as the functional HERINE BB o
currencies of the group entities to which these transactions relate.
Interest rate risk 39.2 FEERK
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for changes in interest N5 B A A1 2= B B ifn R X2 A I 2R R B = RN
rates relates primarily to the Group’s floating interest rate SENZEEERR - ANEEIWEFEAEMLT
borrowings. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to AT EALOEHPEFIRER - A - EEEY
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the management FMEREREITEE  WERNERERLEITE
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging AR =R -
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s TREFMAPNEARNEB RARRRRE ARG
and the Company’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period. BEMENIER -
Group Company
150 N
2010 2009 2010 2009
Z3-2% “IENE “3-%% ZEThE
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest rate HK$'000 interes trate HK$'000 interest rate HK$'000 interestrate  HK$'000
BRI THL ERA% Th BRI THL BRI TAn
Fixed rate borrowings: BENZEE
Loans from non-controling shareholders ~ FERERER  1.6%-6.75% 114,698 6.75% 117,621 - - = =
Convertible notes ERERE 6.28% 13,672 6.28% 72,942 6.28% 13,672 6.28% 72942
Loans from a related company —BBELTER - - 3.66% 20,000 = - - -
188,370 210,563 13,672 72,942
Variable rate borrowings: 2OF%EE
Bank loans FIER 1.07% - 6.21% 319,869  1.05%-8.69% 290,39 - - - -
Loans from a related company ~RBEAAER - - 525%-6.25% 10,000 = - 525%-625% 10,000
319,869 300,39 - 10,000
Total borrowings BEET 508,239 510958 13,672 82,942
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES

R E Lk

39. IKEAKREENBEREBEEZE @)

(Cont'd)
39.2 Interest rate risk (Cont'd) 39.2 FREK (&)
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the TRANMIGEEEEBNRRSHREHEANRR
Group’s profit for the year and retained profits that would raise if A=A 5% B IR EB) (RERFT A H A E R el
interest rates to which the group entities have significant exposure BRZMERFTE)  AEENFERIIRRE
at the end of the reporting period had changes at that date, AR BN IR A E) o
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
Group Company
iS4 NG|
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-ZF “ZTNF “E-%% —TTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx TR TR TR
Increase in interest rate & £ 100 basis points 100 basis points 100 basis points 100 basis points
100BE 2 100EES 100EEZ 100 A&
(Decrease)/Increase in profitlloss)  (Fi4) /EEE
for the year B/ (E8) (2,436) (2,299) = 84
(Decrease) in retained profits (R RERF (2,436) (2,299) - (84)
Decrease in interest rate A ENS (100 basis points) (100 basis points) (100 basis points) (100 basis points)
(100fE & &) (100fEEE) (100fEE %) (100 {EZ2h)
Increase/(Decrease) in profit/(loss) 3211,/ Ci ) £
for the year BF,/ (&E) 2,436 2,299 - (84)
Increase in retained profits BIRE BT 2,436 2,299 = 84
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that LI SRRE AT TR ERF RSB DR REHR
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the B4 Hit A2FHFEMeRITARNERRM
reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to interest BT o MR I00EEL AEREEEH T —
rate risk for financial instruments in existence for the whole year. FEHRE AR ATARFNENSEIEEHN
The 100 basis points increase or decrease represents et - BEASMINERAR ST NF+ A=
management’s assessment of reasonably possible change in +—HMEUE -
interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting date.
The same basis of analysis was also performed as at 31 December
20009.
39.3 Credit risk 39.3 =ERK

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts and
other receivables, deposits paid and bank deposits. The Group’s
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other
counterparties, identifies either individually or by group, and
incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Where
available at reasonable cost, external reports on customers and
other counterparties are obtained and used.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral or
other credit enhancements.

In respect of accounts and other receivables, the Group is not
exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single
counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The credit risk for liquid funds is considered
minimal, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high
quality of external credit ratings.

AEENEERRERRE RUKIRR R E MR
WHIR - ENRERRITER - NEBEREE
ZHAAZHNERERR -

AN B E Rk FEE P R E MR 5
FERRER - WMEE ARG R E FiE L
B o MRASRE - AEBEBRERFNAER
BEPREMRZFZTHINERIRE -

AEENESREEMREANBER R EME
ERAEEAERER -

BAR MR AR R B EL Mt R U0 - AR SR BT SR AT
AEXREE RS IMEA BRI 5 77 RAER
HERUNRZ 577 - ARARENR ST 5
EERFRINMEEFNRDHRT - HHLER
nEBELNEERBRARME+TDEM -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES
(Cont'd)

39.3

39.4

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Company due to financial guarantee
contracts provided to its subsidiaries, the Company is exposed to
credit risk for maximum amount of HK$43,985,000 (2009:
HK$44,295,000), being the amount of contingent liabilities in
relation to financial guarantee contracts issued.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group does not have any
significant liquidity risk exposure.

The Group’s poalicy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
to ensure that the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term
financial liabilities.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group and the Company’s
bank borrowings, based on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Company can be required to pay.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a repayment on demand
clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period in
which the Group and the Company can be required to pay, that is
if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other bank
borrowings is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

BEEREENBERRBE @)

39.3

39.4

FERR (&)

$“ﬁ%%§mEEFEHAXEWEWE

Tkﬁ%ﬁﬁ% AR EHAR
SXMEER 7%%1?“ m
ximw B A43, 985 000 L (=& jli
44,295,000/ 7T) * BIFTE8 S IEREHNE
B RABESE -

REE S @R

RERREE © BB - NEB T RERFR
e RALEBYEINEEERBARAIKTE -
NERAREEEBRMES MRERSRER
PNTE - ARARERERA  AEEWEEMR
%ﬁmugbé{iﬂ °

AEENBRREREZERDESEFE - A
BRAEEERAMESFHEOmREE AR
RHERABNRDESTE -

TRITEARAFTREDNE (BIFRAE OF =
Y@W%;)}&iﬁimﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬂ
5 RARA A RAERNRT BHZT
m¢%.&$ Tmﬁ%%*%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%
AR -

ARME - HRRERTAI2ENBITERR
EREEGFNERER - BASMIEAEE

R R BRI AR AR R & F HA R (BN & 75 4%
T RN ESRANEEE ) 255
e - HARITREERNRIE B DT AR 8
EXBHRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES

(Cont'd)

39.4 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

39.

MBEREENBERBR &

394 FBELER (&)

roup Company
150 A0
Total Total
contractual contractual
Canying ~ undiscounted Less than bto Mter 5 Carrying ~ undiscounted Less than bto
amout  cashflows  On demand Gmonths  12months 1105 years Jears amount  cashflows  On demand Gmonths  12months 1105 years
ELLS i ~EAE ARAIER ~EAZ
BEE RenESE FER  OHWAER  t=@R -FERE EENLE BEE RenESE BEX  OWiER 1R -%EIf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL TER TER TER TER TR TEn Thn ThL ThL Thi ThR ThR
2010 2%-3%
Accounts payable ERER 87,883 87,883 87,883 - - - - - - - - - -
Accruals, deposis received B3R Bk
and other payables REERE 24,5% 2%,5% 2,5% - - - - 6,576 6,576 6,576 - - -
Term loans Subject o WaREXERAR
repaymenton demand cause  HVEHER 43985 43985 43,985 - - - - - - - - - -
Other bank oans AR 215,884 339 - 101,667 146,582 53489 9,638 - - - - - -
Loan fomnoncontoling.~ FERBREH
shareholders 114,698 118712 - 14,000 9900 94,812 - - - - - - -
Amount due o asubsidiary A -EHBARZE - - - - - - - 15 15 15 - - -
Convertible notes TaRZE 13672 81,719 - 1875 1875 71969 - 13672 81,719 - 1875 1875 71,969
620,718 668,202 196,464 117,542 198,357 26,210 9,658 80,263 88,310 6,591 1875 1875 71,6%
Financie guarantees issued:  E3tE ABTER -
Maximum amount guaranteed 5 EREE - - - - - - - 131 43,985 43,985 = = =
Group - restated Company
K5E - HE| LA
Total Total
contractual confractual
Camying  undiscounted Less than 0 After Camying  undiscounted Less than 6to 105
amount  cashflows  On demand Gmonths  12months  Lto5years years amount  cashflows  Ondemand 6months 12 months Jears
i ~ERE BRI NEAZ
FEE ReRE4E 2k JRAER 2B -£ERE RENE FOE ReRE4E BEX  ORAER toER EER
HKS000. HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000  HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Thn Thr Thr TR TR Tén  Tén Thn Thn Thn Thn Thr Thr
2009 EENE
Aecounts payable EffER 38993 38993 3993 s s . = = = = = = s
Recruals, deposis receied ~ E5TE 7 Bk
and other payables REMENTE 22 221 201 - - - - 186 186 186 = = =
Term loans subject to WRRERRERS
repaymenton demand clause  FFEE 442% 442% 4429 - - - - - - - - - -
Other bank oans EfEAER 60 28869 - 10310 A810 20 17089 10,000 10009 - 10009 - -
Other oan AfER 30,000 131 - 0131 - - - - - - - - -
Loan fomnon-contoling.~ FEARBREH
shareholders 1762 121,512 - 85,612 12,000 290 - - - - - - -
Convertible notes TEEZE 7242 85,469 - 1875 1875 81,719 - 72942 85,469 - 1875 187 81,719
572,172 631,250 105,509 127928 3,68 345,069 17,059 84,788 97,304 1846 11,884 1875 81,719
Financia guarantees issued: 23t BB IR -
Maximum amount guaranteed 55 EREE - - - - - - - 6 44,99 4499 - - -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES
(Cont'd)

39.4 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis of term
loans with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
contained in page 113. Taking into account the Group’s and the
Company’s financial position, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such term loans
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements.

Maturity analysis of term loans subject to a repayment on demand
clause based on scheduled repayments is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

BEEREENBERRBE @)

39.4

I)Ibaﬁﬁﬂm (4 r\

TREBAM AR wimy
iR - %
#i@@%ﬁﬁ o A
It % E SRR 7 eH
[fREs SR E R
EE R AR NG EIR  FERBBTIA
ﬂ%ﬁﬁHM%ngﬁkﬁﬁ T

%E@%ﬁ%&ﬁﬂ%%%ﬁm%mﬁmﬂﬁ

AR EREE
WMﬂWEﬁﬁﬁT:

Group
A&H
Total
undiscounted Less than 6to After 5
cash flows On demand 6 months 12 months 1to 5 years years
AR ~ERE

ReRBRE RER  PRAEA T=A —-FZ1#% EFHNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TR TR TR
31 December 2010 “E-EF+-A=t-H 48,636 - 5,308 4,886 32,076 6,366
31 December 2009 “EENF+-_A=1—H 52,533 - 19,439 4,408 17,086 11,600

The company did not have any term loans subject to repayment
on demand clause as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

39.5 Fair value

The directors of the Company consider the fair values of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of the immediate or short-
term maturity of these financial instruments. The fair values of
non-current financial assets and liabilities were not disclosed
because these are not materially different from their carrying
amounts.

39.6 Fair value measurement recognised in the statement of financial
position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three
levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of these financial assets and liabilities.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities;

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

o Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

39.5

39.6

R_E-ZER_FTHES—H=+4—§ -
R A AR KR R e e

DMAEE

ARREERR  BARNZEE R T ABEHR
BHEY  wASEeREENABENALE
BEREREEERETA - ANERBDESREE
MEENALBEEEFREZRNA B
EREAAGBE-

REBRABREDN A LEEFTE
%E @f%ﬁ# ﬂﬁé&ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ%

AERARBNO=EER - A EAEL
BUATER :

. F—E : RABEEKAT RER
MIZ A RE CREFE)

. F_E:BEENRESN  pEEN
B &= A A (BER) skfEiE (Bl
ERITE) BERNBARE &

F=F: WIFRBEUBEMSHEAH
gﬁiﬁﬁ%%k@ﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁ 237VN
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES

R E Lk

39. IKEAKREENBEREBEEZE @)

(Cont'd)
39.6 Fair value measurement recognised in the statement of financial 39.6 REIBERRBREANAALEENE (&)
position (Cont'd)
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial asset CRIEEXABN AR BEBRNEESET
or liability is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level BEHAABENENS EEAFVENTIKE
of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. R NBURETT ©
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, no financial assets and RZZE—ZTFR_TTNF+=_A=1+—1H "
liabilities were measured at fair value. Accordingly, the hierarchy MESHEERBBERAABEE - AL -
for fair value measurement disclosures have not been presented. WEZI AR EEERTERE -
39.7 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category 39.7 RENIRERMEERABME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities RMERREROAEBeREERAGBERE
as recognised at the end of the reporting period may be BErREHMT - BRI AN EINAIFER
categorised as follows. See notes 4(j) and 4(m) for explanations BErE - BAHMNEA() RAMEFAE ©
about how the classification of financial instruments affects their
subsequent measurement.
Group Company
rEH b NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-TF —ITTHhF ZET-TF —ITTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT FHET FH& T
Financial assets tREE
Loans and receivables: ER R ERGRIE
Accounts receivable FE W BR R 41 353 = =
Deposits paid and other B AR & K& H i FE Wk IE
receivables 21,266 27,442 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW B B & B R IE - = 502,261 458,466
Restricted bank deposits ZRHIRITFER 18,712 8,068 = =
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBECEEY 422,108 348,296 140 5,178
462,127 384,159 502,401 463,644
Financial liabilities cHAE
Financial liabilities measured R AN FTEH
at amortised cost: SHEE:
Accounts payable FEBR R 87,883 38,993 = =
Accruals, deposits received EETER - BElizE
and other payables P& Y AN E S 24,596 22,221 6,576 1,846
Borrowings B 434,567 438,016 - 10,000
Convertible notes AR R 73,672 72,942 73,672 72,942
Amount due to a subsidiary FES —TEM B A R FIE - - 15 =
Financial guarantee contracts M ERE 4 - = 131 276
620,718 572,172 80,394 85,064
smrepaman —s-zess 118



Group Financial Summary

EEUBHE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

e W&

For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-—A=+—HLEE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—e-®F -TTAF -TT\F —TTtF —TTAF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FH&T FHT T
Revenue A 375,526 258,865 91,715 184,560 207,957
Profit/(Loss) from operations LB BF  (Ei8) 49,364 38,297 (43,980) 53,285 107,076
Finance costs B AR (18,616) (26,252) (25,955) (12,975) (5,180)
Share of results of associates i R/NCTE ¥ 13,424 6,090 23,831 21,417 19,147
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BRETS R AT 2R, (E518) 44,172 18,135 (46,104) 61,727 121,043
Income tax (expense)/credit Frs® () /#E (17,379) (6,133) 83 (16,162) (43,893)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FERF, (BE) 26,793 12,002 (46,021) 45,565 77.150
Attributable to owners KAT]
of the Company % 58 fE A 18,061 15,854 (33,225) 36,115 73,316
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION A PR R ;R
As at 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+-—8
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
—E-FF —EENF —EENF —EELF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT FH&ET T
(restated) (restated)
(& &E5) (&%)
Non-current assets EMEEE 515,020 473,660 547,357 479,742 332,607
Current assets MEBEE 1,144,055 1,069,138 888,561 849,901 269,515
Current liabilities mENEE (451,499) (317,436) (208,079) (194,848) (86,180)
Non-current liabilities EREBAERE (258,281) (353,737) (372,484) (287,612) (46,782)
Net assets BEFE 949,295 871,625 855,355 847,183 469,160
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Investment Properties

REME

Interest
attributable to

Properties the Group

/S KBRS

The Shopping arcade of Phase 1 86%
and all shops on Level 1 at Zone A

of Phase 5, Suzhou Garden Villa,

98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Fp BT %k & AR M T [ 4 1L B& 085

$REE S0 2 — EARE Y 15 I
FRH—BARFAE R

Shops on Levels 1, 2 and 3 of Block 11 86%
and the basement, Suzhou Garden Court,

1333 Bin He Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

rp BT A% & &% N T 3T (28 )R] B8 133358

MBI ELIIE—1E 8 =8

% ] 7 40 R b B

Villa J101, Suzhou Garden Villa 86%
Phase 1, 98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FR BT R 4 AR N T 37 [ 2 1L B 985k

$REESLE —HRJ101 5

Flats 1A and 1B of Jin Hua Tower, 86%
Suzhou Garden Villa

Phase 1, 98 Shi Shan Road,

New District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

Fp BT %k & AR M T [ 4 1L B& 085

IREEILE —HASREIE IARIBE

List of Principal Properties

Approximate
Total Gross
Floor Area
(sg.m)
BEEEMBEN
(FEHXK)

11,023

4,481

270

220

Type

Pz

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[EES

Residential
F=

Residential
F=

EFEYE

Lease term

B

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
H—hANZF+AT+ILBEE
—ERZF+ATNAR -
BEETF

70 years from

16 January 1995 to

15 January 2065
H—ANAF—A+REE
—ZERAF—A+EA -
REETF

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
H—hANZF+AT+ILBEE
ZERZFTATNAR
REETF

70 years from

19 October 1992 to

18 October 2062
B—hAh=ZF+A+IABZE
—EXRZF+TA+TNAR
REETF

FRERARAE

117
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List of Principal Properties

E-LY/ES

Investment Properties (Cont'd)

REWE &)
Interest Approximate
attributable to Total Gross
Properties the Group Floor Area Type Lease term
(sq.m)
LYE S SEFhER BEEEEN HHl i
(FE7HXK)
Flat 1D of Jin Guo Tower, Flats 1C, 2B, 86% 7,607 Residential 70 years from
2D, 6A to 6D, 7B, 7C, 8A to 8C, F= 19 October 1992 to
9A to 9D, 10B to 10D, 11A to 11D, 18 October 2062
12A to 12D, 15A, 15B, 16A, 16C, BH—ANLZF+ATHBEE
16D, 17A to 17D, 18A to 18D, 19A, 19C, —ERZF+ATNAR -
19D and 20B to 20D of Jin Sing Tower, BEE+F
Suzhou Garden Villa Phase 2,
98 Shi Shan Road,
New District, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
Fp BT A% & A% N T % 2 260 1L B O8%5%
IRESLE _HIBREIDE - SBEEICE -
2BE : 2DE * 6AE6DE * /BE * 7CE
8AZ8CE ~ 9AZ9DE * 10BE10DE -
11AZ11DE * 12AZ 12DE
15A= -« 15BZE * 16A%E * 16CE * 16DZE
17AZ£17D%E * 18AZ18D%E
19AZE * 19CZE * 19DE K 20BE20DE
Flats 1B, 1D and 1F of Jin Bon Tower, 86% 484 Residential 70 years from
Suzhou Garden Villa Phase 3, F= 19 October 1991 to
98 Shi Shan Road, 18 October 2061
New District, Suzhou, BH—AN—F+AThIBEE
Jiangsu Province, the PRC —EX—%+A+N\AB "
Fp BT 5 & &R M T [ 60 LU B 08k AEETF
REHE=HIHEHE1IB - IDRIFE
Beijing Landmark Towers, 30.05%* 15,504 Hotel The land use rights of the
8 East Third Ring North Road, Ny property have been vested in
Chaoyang District, Beijing Landmark Towers Co.,
Beijing, 50,768 Office Ltd. by allocation for a term
the PRC WRAE from 30 January 1986 to
f B L R ARG [ R = IR b BE 8% 7 October 2020
IERZEHTRNE 22,663 Shop Y FEE T AR R E
[k BAABRTIERRETANE
BRAR - FHEHE—NNAR
15,504 Service F—A=+HRE-Z_F
Apartment F+AtHER
R E
25,705 Basements
Hh &
& Group under “Interests in associates” in note 17 to the financial statements. * BAMEHRRIEL7 M E AR a9 —&f -
1 1 8 New Heritage Holdings Ltd. Annual Report 2010



Properties Held Under Development

E9ELES

List of Principal Properties

EFEYE

Interest Approximate Approximate
attributable to Total Total Gross Estimated Date
Properties the Group Site Area Floor Area Type of Completion Progress
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
L/ SEfEEE  ARBEEN  LAERZEERL  ER R IAE ERMR
(FAK) (FAK)
Wuzhong Garden Court 54% 41,579 61,484 Residential Phase | Completed
situated at south side of November 2007
Nanxijiang Road
and east side of Residential Phase Il Completed
Mingxi Road, November 2008
Wuzhong District, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC Residential/ Phase Il Completed
Wit Commercial June 2010
I BT &R & # M T
RPREEIEBAIR fFx £-1 B®RT
BE R SR {A —ZZtF+-R
FE £ B®RT
“ZZN\F+-A
FE/ T £=1 BE®RT
—T-Z2ERA
Taihu Garden Court 55% 131,445 92,037 Residential Phase | Completed
situated at June 2009
Ling Tang Road North,
West of Mu Guang Canal, Residential Phase |l Under
Guangfu Town, 2011 construction
Wuzhong District, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC Residential Phase Il Planning in
250 2012 progress
I BT &R & B ™
RERARE % £—1 B®RT
BRI ZEZAFERA
AR ET AR
FE £ jetas
—E——F
FE £=H ZEh
—E——F
sezpamRan —2-2s 119



List of Principal Properties

E-LY/ES

Properties Held Under Development (Cont'd)

BRDPYE B
Properties
L/ES

Lakeside Garden Court
situated at East shore of
Long Zhong Lake in
Shengze Town,

Wujiang City, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
22

RPEIEHS
BNRImEEE

BB SR

Office, SOHO and retail arcade

to be situated at Ta Yun Road West,
Yue Lai Xi East,

Economic Development Zone,
Wuzhong District, Suzhou,

Jiangsu Province, the PRC

PAZ  NHBEAR /RERLE
KEERS

AL R BT ERE BN T
RAOBLERER

B R ROZ R A

Interest
attributable to
the Group

SEfb R

94%

100%

Approximate
Total

Site Area
(sq.m.)
BHBEED
(FAK)

86,236

14,592

Approximate
Total Gross
Floor Area
(sq.m.)
BEZEED
(FAK)

155,225

58,368

Type
kil
Residential/
Commercial

Residential

Residential

/W

Commercial/
Office

mE/WAE

Estimated Date
of Completion

% TR
Phase |
December 2010
Phase Il

2011

Phase Il to IV
2013

£-8
—“Z-ZF+-H
£
—T——F
E=ZNH
—T-=F%
2014
—T-mE

Progress

ERMR

Completed

Under
construction

Planning in
progress

B%RT

BEH

eIl

Planning in

progress

eI
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